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Government of West Bengal 
Public Health Engineering Department  

Project Management Unit, West Bengal Drinking Water Sector Improvement Project  
Utility Building, 1st Floor, (Premises No.-09/1-0024)  

AA-IA, (Tank No.-3), New Town Kolkata-700 156 
Phone No.-(033) 2324-2095, E-mail.: pd.pmu.adb@wbphed.gov.in; pmu.adb@wbphed.gov.in  

 

Memo No. PMU/WBDWSIP/PHED/25/595,            Date: 30.06.2025 

 

 

 
On behalf of the Governor of West Bengal e-Tender is invited by the Executive Engineer-II, PMU, 
WBDWSIP, PHE Dte. Govt. of West Bengal for West Bengal Drinking Water Sector Improvement Project from 
bonafide and resourceful eligible Chartered Accountant Firms having experience in similar nature of work 
(Submission of Proposal through online):- 

Sl. 
No
. 

Name of work 
Minimum 
Amount to 
be Quoted 

Token 
Earnest 

Money (Rs.) 

Period of 
Completion 

1 Engagement of C & AG empanelled Chartered 
Accountants (CA) Firm for Annual Audit of 
Project Financial Statements for the office of 
the Project Management Unit, WBDWSIP, PHE 
Dte. for the Financial Year 2024-2025. 

Rs.40,000/- 

2% of the 
Quoted 

Amount to be 
submitted 

30 (thirty) 
days 

 
1. Intending Bidder may download the Bid document from the website directly by the help of 

Digital Signature Certificate. 
2. Both technical Bid and Price Bid will be submitted concurrently duly digitally signed on the 

Website https://wbtenders.gov.in  
3. Bids are to be submitted in the form meant for respective Bids. 
4. Price Bids will be opened in respect of only technically qualified bidders and on a date notified 

later. 
5. Purpose of Audit Report  : 

Compliance of para 2.09 of the Project Agreement for the ADB Loan and Grant. The Audited 
Project Financial Statements (APFS) will be placed before different Central and State 
Government authorities and ADB as and when required.  

6. The brief scope of work : 
Audit of Project Financial Statements of PMU for the financial year 2024-25 as per ToR 
attached. 

7. Eligibility criteria for participation:  

i) The CA firm must be registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
and in existence for more than 20 (twenty) years. (Firm Constitution Certificate is to be 
attached).  

ii) The CA firm must have at least 10 (ten) partners, out of which at least 4 (four) partners 
should be Fellow Member of the ICAI. 

iii) The firm must be empaneled with the office of the Comptroller and Auditor General (CAG) 
of India. (Empanelment certificate for 2024-25 to be attached). 

iv)  Average Annual turnover of the firm must be more than Rs. 2.00 Crore in last 3 (three) 
Financial Years. (Tax Audit Reports to be submitted). 

v) The firm must have completed audit of 3 (three) externally aided projects funded by bi-
lateral or multi-lateral agencies (like ADB/ World Bank, JICA etc.) 

vi) The firm may be registered anywhere in India with at least a branch office in Kolkata.  
 

Participating bidders must upload all relevant papers in support of eligibility. Bidder must 
upload copy of highest valued work order of similar nature work during last 3 (three) years 
along with completion certificate. 

Firms fulfilling all the above criteria should only apply. 

8. Joint Ventures and consortium will not be allowed. 

NOTICE INVITING ELECTRONIC TENDER NO.-01/EE-II/PMU OF 2025-2026 (2nd Call) OF THE 
EXECUTIVE ENGINEER-II, PMU, WBDWSIP, PHED, GOVT. OF WEST BENGAL 



9. Date & Time Schedule:- 
Sl. No. Particulars Date & Time 

1. Date of uploading Bid Documents (online) (Publishing date) 30/06/2025 

2. Document download started date (online) 01/07/2025 
from 11.00 AM 

3. Document submission started date (online) 02/07/2025 
from 11.00 AM 

4. Both Technical and financial Bid submission closing date (online) 14/07/2025 
upto 02.00 PM 

5. Date of opening of Technical Proposals (online) 16/07/2025 
after 02.00 PM 

6. Date of uploading of list of technically qualified Bidders (online) 

To be Notified 
later 

7. Date of opening of financial Bid (online) 

8. Date of uploading of list of Bidders along with the final rates through (online), 
also if necessary for further negotiation through (offline) for final rate.  

 

10. Name and address of the Notice inviting authority:  
Executive Engineer-II, Project Management Unit, West Bengal Drinking Water Sector 
Improvement Project, PHE Dte., Utility Building, 1st floor, Premises No.-09/1-0024, Action 
Area-IA (Tank No.-3), New Town, Kolkata-700156. 
 

11. Name and address of the Bid Accepting Authority:     
Project Director, PMU, WBDWSIP, PHE Dte. Utility Building, 1st floor, Premises No.-09/1-
0024, Action Area-IA (Tank No.-3), New Town, Kolkata-700156. 
 

12. Earnest Money: 2% of the Quoted Amount to be submitted (offline) in the form of Bank Draft 
/ Pay Order on any Nationalized bank in favour of “WBDWSIP, PHE Dte.” payable at Kolkata. 
No other form of “Earnest Money” will be accepted.  
 

 Tender will be declared informal if earnest money is not submitted in prescribed form. 
 

 “Earnest Money” would be sent physically to the office of the Project Director, PMU, 
WBDWSIP, PHE Dte. under sealed cover before the stipulated date and time of Bid opening 
(Earnest Money will not be received by post or courier) 

 

13. No conditional/ incomplete Bid will be accepted under any circumstances. 
 

14. Executive Engineer-II, PMU, WBDWSIP, PHE Dte. reserves the right to cancel the TENDER 
due to unavoidable circumstances and no claim in this respect will be entertained. 

 

15. During scrutiny, if it comes to the notice of the Bid inviting authority that the credential or any other 
papers submitted are found incorrect / manufactured/fabricated, that Bidder will not be allowed to 
participate in the Bid and that application will be out rightly rejected without any prejudice. 

 

16. The Bid inviting authority reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid and to cancel the 
process without assigning any reason whatsoever to the Bidder. 
 
 Sd/- 

Executive Engineer-II 
  PMU, WB DWSIP, P.H.E. Dte.  

Govt. of West Bengal 
 

Memo No. PMU/WBDWSIP/PHED/25/595/(1-10),          Date, New Town, the : 30.06.2025. 
Copy forwarded for information to: - 
1. P.S. to the Project Director, PMU, WBDWSIP, PHE Deptt. Govt. of West Bengal. 
2. The Chief Engineer, Headquarters, PHE Dte. 
3. The Chief Engineer (Civil), PMU, WBDWSIP, PHE Dte. Govt. of West Bengal. 
4. The Superintending Engineer, (Civil) / (Mech./Elec.), PMU, WBDWSIP, PHE Dte. 
5. The Executive Engineer-I / (Mech/Elec), PMU, WBDWSIP, PHE Dte. 
6. The Divisional Accounts Officer (Gr.-I), PMU, WBDWSIP, PHE Dte. 
7. Office Notice Board. 
8. File Copy.             

                             Sd/-  
Executive Engineer-II 

PMU, WB DWSIP, P.H.E. Dte.  
Govt. of West Bengal  

Digitally signed by RAJAT NARAYAN SAHA
Date: 2025.06.30 15:40:42 IST
Location: West Bengal-WB

Signature Not Verified



 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

West Bengal Drinking Water Sector Improvement Project (WBDWSIP) is an ADB aided rural drinking water 
supply project being implemented by the Public Health Engineering Department, Government of West Bengal 
(PHED) through its PMU and 3 (three) PIUs. The Project  aims to mitigate arsenic, fluoride and salinity affected 
areas of North & South 24 Parganas, Bankura and East Midnapore districts. The project is to provide 24x7 
potable, safe and sustainable drinking water @ 70 lpcd to 3,99,000 present households of the abovesaid 
districts. The systems have been designed for a period up-to the year 2046. The original project cost was $ 
349 million consisting of ADB Loan - US$ 240 million (Loan ID-3696-IND), ADB Grant - US$ 3 million (Grant 
ID-9196-IND) and State share of US$ 106 million(US$1=INR 65) 

 
1.1. MAINTENANCE OF BOOKS OF ACCOUNTS IN WBDWSIP 

 
WBDWSIP consistently applied Government Accounting Standards and present fairly, in all material 
aspects, the financial situation of the project at the year end and of resources and expenditures for the 
year ended on that date. The process of accounting in WBDWSIP is as follows: 
(a) Currently, WBWSIP is maintaining its accounting records through Web Based Project Finance 
Accounting System Integrated with Voucher Generations and authorization of payment through bank. 
The accounting software is developed by the help of an External Agency. The project also uses LF-PL 
module of IFMS, Govt. of West Bengal for receipts and payments of state share. 
 
(b) The project has 3 (three) district-wise Project Implementation Units (PIU) viz. PIU-Bankura, PIU-
East Medinipur and PIU-North 24 Parganas and 1 (one) Project Management Unit (PMU) with 
specific responsibilities. 
 
(c) PIU only forwards the bills through the project accounting system. 
 
(d) The Primary Accounting unit is PMU which maintains all the primary records of transactions/ 
activities. 
 
(e) Voucher generation, payments, double entry accounting, generation of Cash Books and Trial 
Balance all are done by PMU through the Project Accounting system. 
 
(f) PMU prepares Annual Project Financial Statements in the format as agreed by the O/o 
Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India and the Donor Agency – Asian Development Bank 
(ADB). 

 

1.2. ANNUAL AUDIT IN WBDWSIP 
 

As per the Project Agreement, the Project Financial Statements is to be audited annually by 
independent auditors whose qualifications, experience and terms of reference are acceptable to ADB, 
in accordance with auditing standards acceptable to ADB. The C & AG empaneled Chartered 
Accountant Firm, which shall be selected and entrusted the work of Annual Audit should submit Audit 
Report as per the Terms of Reference (ToR) for audit of ADB assisted projects by C&AG of India, 
Management letter with unambiguous approach towards issues of concern. 
 
 

2. SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Submission of Audited Project Financial Statements for Financial Year 2024-25  within 30 days from the award 
of the contract as per the Terms of Reference (ToR) as agreed by the O/o Comptroller & Auditor General 
(C&AG) of India and the Donor Agency – Asian Development Bank (ADB) provided in ToR section. 
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3. FORMAT OF APPLICATION 

 
3.1. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL 

A. COVERING LETTER 
 
 

Technical Proposal 
on Audit Firm's Letter Head 

 
 

To  
The Executive Engineer-II, 
Project Management Unit,  
West Bengal Drinking Water Sector Improvement Project, 
Utility Building, 1st Floor, (Premises No. 09/I-0024), AA-IA, Tank No.3, 
New Town, Kolkata – 700156 

 
Sub: Appointment of Chartered Accountants Firms for conducting Annual Audit of PMU,     

WBDWSIP for the Financial Year 2024-25 
 

 Sir, 
 

 With reference to your Tender No. 01/EE-II/PMU OF 2025-2026 for appointment of Audit Firms for 
conducting annual audit of for the Financial Years 2024-25-26, I/we wish to apply for the appointment 
as Auditor of PMU, WBDWSIP. 

1. Further, I/we hereby certify that: I/we have read all the provisions/ clauses of the Tender document 
and confirm that notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere to the contrary, the stipulation of all 
clauses of Tender are acceptable to me/us and I/we have not taken any deviation to any clause. 

2. Further, it is to confirm that our offer shall remain valid for acceptance for a period of 60 days from 
date of opening of bids. 

3. I/ We would like to declare that we are not involved in any major litigation that may have an impact of 
affecting or compromising the delivery of services as required under this assignment and we are not 
under a declaration of ineligibility for corrupt or fraudulent practices 

4. I/ We would like to declare that there is no conflict of interest in the services that we will be providing 
under the terms and conditions of this Tender. 

5. I/ We hereby declare that all the information and statements made in this Tender are true and accept 
that any misrepresentation contained in it may lead to our disqualification. 

I/ We understand you are not bound to shortlist / accept the tender you receive. 

Signature of the Authorised Signatory & Seal of the Bidder 
Full Name……………………………………………………… 
Designation……………………………………………………. 
Firm Name……………………………………………………... 
Address with Phone No……………………………………… 
Mobile No………………………... & e-mail ID  ………………. 

 
 
 
Note: 
a) In absence of above declaration/certification, the proposal is liable to be rejected and shall not be 

taken into account for evaluation 
b) Bidders not submitting the required supporting documents for fulfilling the criteria will be 

summarily rejected without any further clarification 
 

Page-2 



 
 
 

B. FORMAT OF DETAILS 
 

1. Name of the Partnership Firm: 
 

2. Details of Partnership Firm 
 

a) Type of the partnership : Firm / LLP 

b) Registration No : 

c) Date from which continuing as 
Partnership Firm /Registration of LLP: 

: 

 
3. Office 

Head Office: 
Address State Contact No Email 

    

Branch Office: 
Address State Contact No Email 

    

    

    

 
4. Details of CAG Empanelment 

 
a) C&G Empanelment No : 

b) Date from which continuing as C&AG 
Empaneled Auditor  

: 

 
 

5. Details of Partners in the Partnership Firm/Limited Liability Partnership 
 

Sl. 
No 

Name of the 
partner 

Membership 
No 

Membership 
Status (ACA/ 

/FCA) 

CISA/DISA Date of 
joining the 
Partnership 
Firm /LLP 
as partner 

Ref. Page no. 
of Supporting 
Membership 

Doc. 

       

       

       

 
 

6. Details of Experience in Audit of Externally Aided Projects 
 
 

Sl. 
No 

Name of the Organization Donor Agency Year of 
Audit 

Type of  Audit 
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7. Annual Turnover of the Firm /LLP in last three Financial Years in INR Crore 
 

FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 Average Annual 
Turnover 

    

 
 

8. Income TAX PAN of the partnership Firm/LLP: 
 

9. GST Registration No. 
 

10. Professional Tax Registration No. 
 

11. Bank Details 
 

1 Bank Name  

2 Bank Address  

3 Name of the Branch  

4 Type of Account  

5 Bank Account Number  

6 IFSC Code  

 

12. Contact Details 
 

1 Name of the Authorized Person  

2 Designation  

3 Mobile number  

4 Email Id  

 
 

We hereby confirm that all terms & conditions as specified in the bid and annexures thereto have been 
accepted by us 

 
 

This is to certify that all the information given above are accurate and any misstatement will be liable for 
rejection of our participation in bid and blacklisting by WBDWSIP 

 
 
 
Note 
 

1. The Cut-off date for calculation of number of year (s) will be the 31.03.2024. Accordingly, any fraction of 
the year will be ignored for calculating number of years. 
 

2. Hard Copy of the Application will not be entertained in any circumstances 
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C. SUPPORTING PAPERS FOR PROOF OF SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
Documents to Fulfill Selection Criteria: 

(a) Firm constitution Certificate as proof of  number of partners as well as year of existence 
since establishment. 

(b) Work Order / Completion Certificate from the organization as proof of 3 (three) audits of 
externally aided projects. 

(c) Tax Audit Reports of 3 (three ) Financial years (FY-2021-22, FY-2022-23 & FY 2023-24) 
for Annual Turnover. 

(d) C&AG Empanelment Certificate for FY 2024-25. 
 

Other Documents: 
a) PAN 
b) GST Registration Certificate 
c) Profession Tax Registration Certificate and copy of last challan deposited. 

 
 

3.2. FINANCIAL PROPOSAL 
 

A. FORM OF FINANCIAL PROPOSAL 
 

(Financial Proposal on Audit Firm's Letter Head) 

 
To  
The Executive Engineer-II, 
Project Management Unit,  
West Bengal Drinking Water Sector Improvement Project, 
Utility Building, 1st Floor, (Premises No. 09/I-0024), AA-IA, Tank No.3, 
New Town, Kolkata – 700156 

 
Sub: Appointment of Chartered Accountants Firms for conducting Annual Audit of PMU,     

WBDWSIP for the Financial Years 2024-25 – Financial Proposal 
 
 

Table for Quoting Fee for the Assignment in terms of the Tender:  
 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars Audit  Fees inclusive of GST in INR 
Price bid shall be quoted 

1. All-inclusive Lump sum fee (including TA/DA and 
other out of pocket expenses, etc.) for the entire 
scope of work covered under the Terms of 
Reference on a Firm price basis valid 

till the complete execution of the assignment 

inclusive of GST. 

(in figure) (in words) 

 
Signature of the Authorised Signatory & Seal of the Bidder 
Full Name……………………………………………………… 
Designation……………………………………………………. 
Firm Name……………………………………………………... 
Address with Phone No……………………………………… 

Mobile No………………………... & e-mail ID ……  
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4. BIDDING PROCESS 

 

1) The bid documents containing the Partnership Firm Profile and Work Experience of the bidder will 
have to be uploaded on the wb-tenders portal of NIC in (.rar) file duly digitally signed. 

 
2) WBDWSIP authority reserves the right to cancel the bid due to unavoidable circumstances 

and no claim in this respect will be entertained. 
 

3) Bid shall remain valid for a period not less than 60 (sixty) days from the last date of submission of  
Bid  

4) There shall be no provision of Arbitration. 
 

Date & Time Schedule 
 

Sl. No. Particulars Date & Time 

1. Date of uploading Bid Documents (online) (Publishing date) 02/06/2025 

2. Document download started date (online) 03/06/2025 
from 11.00 AM 

3. Document submission started date (online) 03/06/2025 
from 11.00 AM 

4. Both Technical and financial Bid submission closing date (online) 11/06/2025 
upto 02.00 PM 

5. Date of opening of Technical Proposals (online) 13/06/2025 
after 02.00 PM 

6. Date of uploading of list of technically qualified Bidders (online) 

To be Notified 
later 

7. Date of opening of financial Bid (online) 

8. Date of uploading of list of Bidders along with the final rates through (online), 
also if necessary for further negotiation through (offline) for final rate.  
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5. TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR ANNUAL AUDIT 

The terms and conditions for conducting Annual Audit in WBDWSIP are indicated hereunder: - 

Terms of Reference ( T O R ) for Audit of ADB assisted projects by Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India 

Background: 

West Bengal Drinking Water Sector Improvement Project (WBDWSIP) is an externally aided project, being 

implemented by Project Management Unit, WBDWSIP, PHE Directorate, Government of West Bengal. The total 

project cost is $ 349 million consisting of ADB Loan - $ 240 million (Loan ID-3696-IND), ADB Grant - $ 3 million 

(Grant ID-9196-IND) and State share of $ 106 million. The disbursement of loan is governed by the ADB Loan 

Disbursement Handbook. The project agreement stipulates that “the executing agency shall (i) maintain 

separate accounts and records for the project (ii) prepare annual financial statements for the project in 

accordance with financial reporting standards prevalent in the country (iii) have such financial statements audited 

annually by independent auditors whose qualifications, experience and terms of reference are acceptable to 

ADB, in accordance with auditing standards acceptable to ADB (iv) as part of each such audit, have the auditors 

prepare a report, which includes the auditors’ opinion(s) on the financial statements and the use of the Loan and 

Grant proceeds, and a management letter (which sets out the deficiencies in the normal control of the Project 

that were identified in the course of the audit, if any)and (v)  copies of such financial statements, audit report 

and management letter, all in English language, and such other information concerning these documents and 

the audit thereof as ADB shall time to time reasonably request.  

 

The executing agencies for all sovereign loans are subject to audit by the Comptroller and Auditor General of 

India (Supreme Audit Institution of the country).  In order to comply with the requirement of audit as referred   

in   above   para, the following   terms   of reference   should   be pursued with   respect to the loan/grant/project 

agreement executed for availing the ADB's assistance. 

 

Objective: 

Article   14(xi) of the Agreement establishing the Asian Development Bank (The Charter) States that 'Proceeds 

of any loan made, guaranteed, or participated by the Bank are used only for the purposes for which the loan 

was granted and with due attention to consideration of economy and efficiency'. In addition, Article 14(xiv) of 

the Charter requires ADB to be guided by sound banking principles in its operations. To fulfill the requirements 

of Article 14 (xi) and (xiv) of the Charter, ADB requires borrowers/project executing agencies to submit audited 

Project accounts (APA) and audited financial statements (AFS). 

 

ADB requires the borrower and the project EA to have the required financial statements for each year audited 

by an independent auditor acceptable to ADB, and in accordance with standards on auditing that are 

acceptable to ADB. An audit of such financial 'statements  includes: (i) an assessment of the adequacy of  

accounting   and  internal  control  systems  with  respect  to  project  expenditures   and  other  financial 

transactions,  and to ensure safe custody of project financed assets, (ii) a  determination  as to whether the 

borrower  and  project  implementing   entities  have  maintained  adequate  documentation   on  all  relevant 

transactions,   including   statement   of  expenditures   (SOE),   Force Account   Works   and  Simultaneous 

Application   for   sub-loan   approval   and  Withdrawal   (SAW))   where   applicable,    
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1 Preparation of balance sheet, statement of income and expenditure shall depend on the legal status of the 

project executing/implementing agency and shall apply to autonomous bodies or corporation until extended 

legally to other types of organization such as government departments. 

 

  (iii)  confirmation   that expenditures  submitted to ADB are eligible for financing and identification of any 

ineligible expenditures, (iv) compliance with loan/grant covenants and ADB's requirements for project 

management and (v) compliance with the use of procedures for Imprest Account (IA)/Second Generation 

Imprest Account (SGIA)/SOE/force account works/SAW, where applicable. 

 

The objective  of the audit of the  Project  Financial Statement  (PFS) is to enable the auditor to express a 

professional  opinion  as to whether  (i) the  PFS present fairly,  in  all  material  respects,  the  sources  and 

applications  of  project funds  for the  period  under  audit  examination,  (ii) the  funds were  utilized for the 

purposes for which they were provided, (iii) loan covenants have been complied with and (iv) expenditures 

shown  in  the  PFS are eligible  for financing  under the relevant  loan/grant  agreement.  In addition, where 

applicable, the auditor will express a professional opinion on the use of the procedures for IA, SGIA, SOE, 

Force Account Works and SAW and whether adequate supporting documentation has been maintained to 

support claims made by project management for reimbursement of expenditures incurred under the SOE, 

Force Account Works and SAW method of reimbursement. 

The books of accounts that provide the basis for preparation of the PFS are established to reflect the financial 

transactions of the project and are maintained by the Project Management Unit, WBDWSIP. 

Standards: 

The audit will be carried out in accordance with the Auditing Standards promulgated by the Comptroller and 

Auditor General of India. The auditor should accordingly consider materiality when planning and performing 

the audit to reduce audit risk to an acceptable level that is consistent with the objective of the audit. Although 

the responsibility for preventing irregularity, fraud, or the use of loan/grant proceeds for purposes other than 

as defined in the legal agreements remain with the borrower, the audit should be planned so as to have a 

reasonable assurance of detecting material misstatements in the PFS. 

Scope:  

In conducting the audit, special attention should be paid to the following: 

1. All external funds have been used in accordance with the conditions of the relevant legal agreement 

and only for the purposes for which the financing was provided. Relevant legal agreement includes the 

Loan/Grant Agreement, the Project Agreement, and the Minutes of Negotiations. 

2. Counterpart funds have been provided and used in accordance with the relevant legal agreements and 

only for the purposes for which they were provided. 

3. Financial convents of the loan agreement have been complied with. 

 

4. In response to identified project risks, the scope may be expended to include a report or the expression 

of an opinion on specific aspects of the operation such as internal controls, compliance with Bank procurement 

policies, or efficiency and effectiveness in the use of loan/grant proceeds. 

 

5. All necessary supporting documents, records, and accounts have been kept in respect of all project 

transactions including expenditures reported via SOEs/IAs/SGIAs/Force Account Works/SAW where 

applicable. Clear linkages should exist between the books of accounts and reports resented to the ADB; and  
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6. The project accounts have been prepared in accordance with consistently applied Government 

Accounting Standards3 and present fairly, in all materials aspects, the financial situation of the project at the 

year end and of resources and expenditures for the year ended on that date. 

 

Project Financial Statements: 

The contents of Project Financial Statements (PFS) are specific to the sector, the project design and the type 

of implementing entity. These formats therefore vary form one project to another. The formats of PFS are 

prepared in consultation with the implementing entity during the preparation of the project. 

 

The Project Financial Statements should include: 

In a nonrevenue-earning entity, or for the audit of project accounts, the annual financial statement may consist 

of the Statement of Receipts and Payments on project transactions. Other schedules of value or cumulative 

by category such as civil works, equipment, consultancy services,  

Training and capacity building, administrative costs, expenditure by financial statement of disbursement under 

 SOE procedure, imprest account, cumulative work-in-progress, assets and inventories and a summarized  

reconciled bank statement are to be attached. See Annexure 1-8 for examples of reporting formats that could 

be prepared for a project implemented by core Government Departments. 

For a revenue-earning entity, a balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement accompanied by 

supplementary statements or schedules supporting the basic statement (e.g., inventories, schedule of assets, 

outstanding loans, aging of receivables, etc.) 

 

Statement of Disbursement : The PFS include a reconciliation between expenditure reported as per the 

statement of sources and application of funds and expenditure claimed from ADB through SOE, documented 

claims (direct payment and reimbursement), commitment letter procedure, force account works or SAW where 

applicable. An example is shown at Annexure 3. 

 

3 until such time as the pronouncements of the Government Accounting Standards Advisory Board are 

accepted and prescribed by the Ministry of Finance, the Accounting Standards followed by the Government of 

India will be defined by the General Financial Rules, PWD Codes; Treasury codes and financial rules and 

codes as are in effect and applicable to the operations of the project. 

 

Other statement or schedules as may be applicable in particular circumstances and as specified in the relevant 

loan/grant agreements. In particular, statement of Appropriation Vs. Actual (Annexure 9) and Statement of 

Expenditure by Output (Annexure 10) shall be prepared to the project financial statements. These statements 

shall not be subject to audit. 

 

Management Assertion: Management should sign the PFS and provide a written acknowledgement of its 

responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and an assertion that project 

funds have been expended in accordance with the intended purposes as reflected in the financial statements. 

An example of a management assertion letter is shown at Annexure 11. 

Statement of Expenditure (SOE), Imprest Account (IA), Seconds Generation Imprest Account (SGIA), Force 

Account Works, Simultaneous Application for Sub-Loan Approval and Withdrawal (SAW) 
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During the course of the audit of the PFS, the auditor is required to audit all SOE, IA, SGIA, Force Account 

Works and SAW for withdrawal applications made during the period under audit examination. The auditor 

should apply such tests as the auditor considers necessary under the circumstances to satisfy the audit 

objective. In particular, these expenditures should be carefully examined for project eligibility by reference to 

the relevant financing agreements. Where ineligible expenditures4 are identified as having been included in 

withdrawal applications and reimbursement against, these should be separately noted by the auditor. 

Audit Report 

An audit report on the PFS should be prepared in accordance with the Auditing Standards promulgated by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India. Those standards require an audit opinion to be rendered related to 

the financial statements taken as a whole, indicating “unambiguously whether it is unqualified or qualified and 

if the latter, whether it is qualified in certain respects or is adverse or a disclaimer of opinion”. In addition, the 

audit opinion paragraph will specify whether, in the auditor’s opinion, (a) loan proceeds have been used as 

covenanted in ADB Loan / Project Agreement (b) financial covenants of loans have been complied with (c) 

with respect to SOEs, Force Account Works and SAW, where applicable, adequate supporting documentation 

has been maintained to support claims to ADB for reimbursement of expenditures incurred; and (d) except for 

ineligible expenditures as detailed in the audit observations, if any, appended to the audit report, expenditures 

are eligible for financing under the Loan/Grant Agreement. Relevant CAG Auditing Standards are reproduced 

in Annexure 12. A sample audit report wording for unqualified opinion in shown at Annexure 13. 

The PFS and the audit report should be received by ADB not later than six (06) months (or 9 months if 

specifically approved) after the close of the fiscal year to which they relate as specified in the loan/project 

agreement. The auditor should also submit two copies of the audited accounts and audit report to the 

Implementing Agency 

The audit report is issued without prejudice to CAG's right to incorporate the audit observations in the 

Report of CAG of India for being laid before Parliament I State or UT Legislature. 

4 refer to ADB’s Operation Manual (OM) Section H3 and Safeguard Policy Statement  

Management Letter 

In addition to the audit report on the PFS, the auditor may prepare a management letter containing 

recommendations for improvements in internal control and other matters coming to the attention of the auditor 

during the audit examination. Where such a management letter is prepared by the auditor, a copy of the same  

 

will be supplied to ADB.  Else, a written advice may be made that no management letter was prepared together 

with the audit report on the PFS. 

General 

The auditor should be given access to any information relevant for the purposes of conducting the audit. This 

would normally include all legal documents, correspondence, and any other information associated with the 

project and deemed necessary by the auditor. The information made available by the auditor should include, 

but not be limited to, copies of ADB's project appraisal document, the relevant legal agreements, a copy of 

these guidelines and a copy of ADB's financial management assessment of the project entity. It is highly 

desirable that the auditor become familiar with other ADB policy document such as ADB guidelines on financial 

management and analysis of projects chapter 5 title reporting and auditing, PAI 5.07 on submission of audited 

project accounts and financial statements, OM section J?/BP on project accounting,   financial   reporting   and  

auditing. The auditor   should also be familiar with ADB's   Loan Disbursement Handbook - 2022 (or as 

amended from time to time). 

Page-10 



SAMPLE FORMATS 

Annexure I 

Name of the Executing   Agency  
Name of the Implementing    Agency  

Name of the Project 
Loan/Grant   No. 

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD   ENDED XX, XXXX 

In (INR) ‘000 

Particulars 
Note 

Reference 

During the Current 
Year for 12 month 

period 

During the 
Previous Year 
for 12 month 

period 

Cumulative Project 
to Date As at [end 
of CURRENT year] 

Opening balance (A)     

Receipts 

Funds received from Government' 

ADB Loan3 

ADB Grant3 

Co-financier 1 

Co-financier 2 

Beneficiary contribution (if any) 

Other receipts such as interest income, sale from 
disposals of fixed assets.   etc. 

 

4 

6 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

   

Total Receipts (B)     

Total (C = A + B)     

Payments     

Investments Costs 4 

Civil Works 

Mechanical and Equipment 

Environment and Social Mitigation 

Consultants 

a. Project Management 
b. Capacity Development 
others 

11    

Subtotal (D)     

Recurrent Costs 

Salaries 

Accommodation 

Equipment Operation and maintenance 

Others 

12    
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Subtotal (E)     

Total Payments     

Financing Charges During Implementation (F) 13    

Total Project Cost (G = D + E + F)     

Closing Balance (C – G)     

 

1 If cash balance are controlled by the entity, indicating cash balance, imprest account and SGIA balance separately 

2 These will include external assistance received by Government for the project. 

3 This shall include amounts received in the Bank Account as well as amounts deemed to be received against direct 
payments made by ADB to the suppliers of goods and services under Direct Payment procedure and Commitment 
Letter procedure. 

4 Expenditure categories are based on the cost allocation table as per Loan/Grant Agreement 

 

Notes 1   to x of the financial   statements form an integral part of these financial statements 
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Annexure 2 

Name of the Executing   Agency  
Name of the Implementing    Agency  

Name of the Project 
Loan/Grant   No. 

 
STATEMENT OF EXPENDIT URE BY C AT EG ORY  AND F IN ANCI ER  

REPORT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD   ENDED XX, XXXX 
In (INR) ‘000 

Particulars 

ADB 4 Co-Financier Government 

Total 
Expenditure 

8 

Percentage of 
financing1 

1 

Actual Expenditure Actual Expenditure Actual Expenditure 

Amount 

2 

% 

3 

Amount 

4 

% 

5 

Amount 

6 

% 

7 

Investment Costs2 

Civil Works 

Mechanical and Equipment 

Environment and Social Mitigation 

Consultants 

c. Project Management 
d. Capacity Development 
others 

        

Subtotal (A)         

Recurrent Costs 

Salaries 

Accommodation 

Equipment Operation and maintenance 

Others 

        

Subtotal (B)         

Total Cost (C = A+B)3        Page-13 



% Total Project Cost         

Total Project Cost for [insert prior year period]         

 

      1 The financing percentages for ADB funds should directly correlate to the financing percentage in the allocation table(s) of the financing agreement(s)  

      2 Expenditure categories are based on the allocation table as per Loan/Grant Agreement 

      3 The figures shown against various categories of expenditure should agree with the current year’s payment in Annexure 1, Statement of Receipts and Payments. 

     4 This shall include total expenditure claimed from ADB under various disbursement procedures, i.e. direct payment, reimbursement, imprest account and commitment 
letter. 

    Notes 1 to x of the financial statements from an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Annexure 3 

Name of the Executing   Agency  
Name of the Implementing    Agency  

[Name of the Project] 
Loan/Grant   No. 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED [YEAR END DATE] 
 

Statement of Disbursement 
Details of the disbursement by method are given below : 

In (INR) ‘000 

Statement of disbursement Note 
Current 

Year  
Period 
Year 

Cumulative 
Project to Date  

Opening balance (A)     

ADB Fund claimed during the year     

Reimbursement3 

Imprest Fund3 

Direct Payment 

Commitment Letter 

6.1 

6.2 

6.3 

6.4 

 

  

Subtotal     

     

Total Expenditure made during the year1 

Less : 

 

              Expenditure not yet claimed 

              Borrower’s share2 

(B) 

 

 

(C) 

(D) 

   

Total Eligible Expenditure claimed (B – C – D + E = A) (E)    

 

1 The total expenditure as per Statement of Receipts and Payments. 

2 This should tally with the Government share included in Statement of Expenditure by category 
and financier (Column 6) 

3 Includes both claims using SOE and full supporting   documentation 

 

Notes 1   to x of the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Annexure 4 

[NAME OF THE COUNTRY/IMPLEMENTING AND EXECUTING AGENCY]  
[NAME OF THE ENTITY/PROJECT] 
[ADB LOAN REFERENCE) 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED [YEAR END DATE] 
 

1.                       Project Nature and Activities 

1. 1             Description of the Project, the nature of activities, commencement and expected completion 
dates.  Mention location, domicile, legal form, controlling /Al EA, brief nature of the project 
outputs, 

1.2       Give legislative framework 

Insert as relevant 

2.           STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

These   financial   statements   have been prepared   in   accordance with approved 
accounting   standards, as applicable in   India. This refers to the cash basis of accounting 
applied with due regard to the General Financial Rules, PWD Codes, Treasury Codes, 
and similar financial rules and codes as are in effect and applicable to the operations 
of the Project. 

3.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1         Financial Statements 

This comprises of the Statement of Receipts and Payments, the Statements of 
Expenditure by Category and Financier, the Statement of Disbursement and related 
notes and appendices to the financial statements 

3.2       Basis of measurement 

Financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on 
[cash / accrual] basis of accounting 

3.3       Changes in Accounting policies 

Describe changes in accounting policies, if any 

3.4       Fund Flow mechanism 

Describe the fund flow mechanism, in particular, whether the IA/EA control funds or 
whether all payments are centralized 

3.5       Advances and other receivables 

Describe treatment of advances against expenditures 

3.6       Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash equivalents comprise [define components of cash]. Explain if the entity controls 
unspent advances, only petty cash, or has a nil balance, as applicable 
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3.7        Accrued and other liabilities 

Disclose any major liabilities which have not been accrued under the cash basis policy  
3.8       Income 

i)  Describe nature of different types of income and how they are recognised.  For 
example grants, sale of proceeds   of fixed assets, interest income on bank accounts 
etc. 

ii)   [Include  if  applicable]  Free  of  cost  office  space,   electricity  and  certain  other 
services  provided  by  {insert  name]  are  not  valued  and  accordingly,   are  not 
recognized in these financial statements as income of the Project. 

3.9       Foreign currency transactions and translation 

(a) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Project are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment   in which the entity operates (the 
functional currency), which is the Indian Rupee (INR). 

(b) Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currency are converted at the exchange rate prevailing at 
the date of transaction.  Foreign currency bank balances are re-stated at the year 
end rate, and the resulting gains/losses   are recognized in   the statement of receipts 
and payments account. Conversion Rate: USD $ 1    = INR         as of 31 March ___ 

3.10       Allocation of Common Costs 

Describe how common costs are allocated to different output/activities 

3.11     Interest Expenses and Financial Charges 

Describe how financial  charges are treated and recorded.  For example if these are 
not allocated to the Project by the borrower 

4.         Funds Received from the Government 

Give details of the government  budgeting and funding mechanism 

                                                                       in 
(INR) '000

Current Prior Cumulative

         Year               Year        Year  to date  

Government Counterpart funding 

Amount Reimbursable to Government 

 

Total 

5.            DATE OF AUTHORIZATION 

These financial statement have been authorized for issue by the statement  

____________________ of _________________ on ………………………………… Page-17 



 

Annexure 5 

 

Name of the Executing 
Agency 

Name of the Implementing 
Agency 

[NAME OF THE 
ENTITY/PROJECT] Loan/Grant 
No. 

 

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL  

STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR  

ENDED [YEAR END DATE] 

6.          Funds Received from ADB 

Give key terms and conditions of the loan, including date of loan agreement, loan 
effectiveness date, key terms and conditions, disbursement schedule, commitment 
fee and interest rates etc. 

In (INR)   '000 

ADB Source of Funds - Method of 
Withdrawal 

 

Note 

Reference 

During 
the 

Current 
Year 

During 
the 

Previous 

 

Cumulati
ve 

Project 
to 

ADB Loan     

- By Reimbursement  Method 6.1    
- By Imprest Account 1 6.2    

- By Direct Payment 6.3    
- By Commitment  Procedure 6.4    

ADB LoanTotal     
ADB Grant     
ADB Loan and Grant Total     

1    This should agree with the advances/replenishments   net of refunds in Statement 6.2. 

6.1       Funds Received from ADB through Reimbursement Method 

Give details, if necessary 
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       Name of the Executing Agency 
Name of the Implementing Agency 

[NAME OF THE ENTITY /PROJET] 
Loan/Grant No. 
NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED [YEAR END DATE] 
6.2       Reconciliation of the Imprest Account and the Bank Statement is given below 

STATEMENT OF IMPREST ACCOUNT FOR       
THE YEAR/PERIOD ENDED XX,  XXXX. 

Prio
Balance brought forward from previous period 

Add: 

Advance.' 

Replenishment received during the 
year/period' Interest Earned 

Subtotal (A) 

Deduct: 

Payments made during the year/period 

Replenishment/Liquidation1  

Expenditure yet to be claimed 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

6.2.1    The US $ equivalent notational amount held at the RBI in respect of the above 
Imprest Account balance is ____________ US $ (bank statement attached) 

Note: Figures indicated are illustrative in nature. 
1 Withdrawal application-wise references required 
6.3       Details of Payments made directly by ADB are given below 

(Add relevant details here) 
6.4       Details of payments made through commitment procedure 

(Add relevant



 

 
6.5          Details of Grants 

(Give relevant details for grants) 
 

Annexure 7 

         Name of the Executing Agency 
Name of the Implementing Agency 

 
[NAME OF THE ENTITY /PROJET] 
Loan/Grant No. 
NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED [YEAR END DATE] 
 
6.6       Deta i l s  o f  d isburs ement  c la im ed  under  t he  S ta temen t  o f  Ex pend i tu re  (SOE)  Proc edure  a re  g i ven  be low  

 
DISBURSEMENT CLAIMED UNDER STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURE (SOE) PROCEDURE 

FOR THE YEAR / PERIOD ENDED XX,  XXXX. 

W/A 
No. 

1 

SOE 
Sheet 
No. 

2 

Category 

3 

Total 
Amount 

Paid 

4 

ADB 
Financing 

%1 

5 

Net 
Eligible 
Expense  

6 (4X5) 

Amount 
Reimbursed 

7 

Imprest Fund 
Replenished/Liq

uidated 

8 

Total 
Disbursement 

Using SOE 
Procedure 

7+8=9 

00001 

 

00002 

 

00005 

1 

2 

1 

2 

3 

1 

2 

Civil Works 

Mechanical and Equipment 

Consultants 

Salaries 

Accommodation 

Environment and Social Mitigation 

Equipment Operation and Maintenance 
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  Total       

  Total for [prior year’       

              1 The financing percentages within the table for ADB funds are as per loan agreement Schedule 3. 
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Annexure 8 

 

Name of the Executing Agency 

Name of the Implementing Agency 

 

 

[NAME OF THE 
ENTITY/PROJECT]  

Loan/Grant   No. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED [YEAR END DATE] 

 

 

 

                                                               In  
(INR)  '000   

Cumulative

Current Prior Project to

        Year            Year            Date   
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If any of the amounts given on the Statements of 
Receipts and Payments require further detail or 
Break-down, provide this here against relevant Not 
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Annexure 9  

Name of the Executing Agency 
Name of the Implementing Agency 

Name of the Project 
Loan/Grant No. 

STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATION VS. ACTUAL 

Cost 
Categories 

For the current year ended 20xx For the Prior year ended 20xx 
Cumulative from [beginning of Project] to year to 

date 

Budgeted 
Expenditure

s 

Actual 
Expenditure

s 

Utilisation 
Percentag

e 

Varianc
e 

Budgeted 
Expenditure

s 

Actual 
Expenditure

s 

Utilisation 
Percentag

e 

Varianc
e 

Program 
Budgeted 

Expenditure
s 

Actual 
Expenditure

s 

Utilisation 
Percentag

e 

Varianc
e 

INR ‘000 INR ‘000 % 
INR 
‘000 

INR ‘000 INR ‘000 % 
INR 
‘000 

INR ‘000 INR ‘000 % 
INR 
‘000 

Investment 

Costs 
            

Civil Works             

Mechanical 

and Equipment 
            

Environment 

and Social 

Mitigation 

            

Consultants             

a. Project 

manageme

nt 
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b. Capacity 

Developme

nt 

            

Others             

Subtotal             

Total 

Payments 
            

Financing 

Charges 

During 

Implementation 

            

Total Project 

Cost 
            

Grand total of 

Expenditures 

in USD 
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Annexure 1 0  

Name of the Executing Agency 
Name of the Implementing Agency 

Name of the Project 
Loan/Grant No. 

 
EXPENDITURE BY OUTPUT COMPOMNENTS 

In INR ‘000 
 Unallocable common costs Output 1 1 Output 2 Output 3 Total Expenditure 

 
Prior 
Year 

Curren
t Year 

Cum to 
Date 

Prio
r 

Yea
r 

Current 
Year 

Cum 
to 

Date 

Prio
r 

Yea
r 

Curre
nt 

Year 

Cum 
to 

Date 

Prior 
Year 

Curre
nt 
Year 

Cum to 
Date 

Prior 
Year 

Curre
nt 

Year 

Cum 
to 

Date 

Investment Costs                

Civil Works                

Mechanical and Equipment                

Environment and Social 

Mitigation 
            

   

Consultants                

c. Project management                

d. Capacity Development                

Others                

Subtotal (A)             
  Page-
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Recurrent Costs                

Salaries                

Accommodation                

Total Payments                

Financing Charges During 

Implementation 
            

   

Others                

Subtotal (B)                

Total Cost (C = A+B)                

% Total Project Cost                

 1 Allocate the expenditure to the different Project Output Components as per the Loan Agreement. Add as many columns as required. For common costs 
allocated, specify the sharing rations in the note 3.10.   
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Annexure 11 

 

Example of a Management Assertion Letter 

 

(Project Letterhead) 

 

(To Author)                                                                                                      (Date) 

 

This assertion letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statement of the 
________________ Project for the   year   ended                        .      We   acknowledge   our 
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the cash 
basis of accounting followed by the Government of India, and we confirm, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you during your audit: 

 

•     The   project financial   statements   are free of material misstatements, including 
omissions. 

•      Project funds have been used for the purposes for which they were provided. 

•    Project expenditures are eligible for financing under the Loan/Credit agreement. 

•  There have been no irregularities involving management or employees who have a 
significant role in internal control or that could have a material effect on the project 
financial statements. 

• We have made available to you all books of account and supporting documentation 
relation to the project. 

• The project has complied with the conditions of all relevant legal agreements, including 
the Financing Agreement, the Project Agreement, the Project Appraisal Document, the 
Minutes of Negotiations, and the Borrower's Project Implementation Plan. 

 

 

 

(Project Director I Chief Executive Officer) 

 

 

 

(Chief Finance Officer I Senior Finance Officer) 
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Annexure 12 

 

Excerpt from CAG Auditing Standards (2"d Edition, 2002) Chapter IV,  Reporting 

Standards 

 

12.       The form and content of audit option and report. 

12.1  The form and content of all audit opinions and reports are founded on the 
following general principles: 

(a) Title.   The opinion or report should be preceded by a suitable title or heading, helping 
the reader to distinguish it from statements and information issued by others. 

(b) Signature and date.  The opinion or report should be properly signed. The inclusion 
of a date informs the reader that consideration has been given to the effect of events 
or transactions about which the auditor became aware up to that date (which, in the 
case of regularity (financial) audits, may be beyond the period of the financial statement). 

(c) Objectives and scope.     The opinion or report should include reference to the objectives 
and scope of the audit. This information establishes the purpose and boundaries of the 
audit. 

(d) Completeness.    Opinions should be appended to and published with the financial 
statements to which they relate, but performance reports may be free standing. The 
auditor's   opinions and reports should be presented as prepared by the auditor.  In 
exercising its independence CAG may acquire information from time to time, which in 
the national interest cannot be freely disclosed. This can affect the completeness of 
the audit report.   In this situation the auditor should consider the need to make a report 
possibly including confidential or sensitive material in a separate, unpublished report. 

(e) Addressee.   The opinion or report should identify those to whom it is addressed, as 
required by the circumstances   of the audit engagement and local regulations or practice.  
This is unnecessary where formal procedures exist for its delivery. 

(f)  Identification of subject matter. The opinion or report should identify the financial 
statements (in the case of regularity (financial) audits) or area (in the case of performance 
audits) to which it relates. This includes information such as the name of the audited 
entity, the date and period covered by the financial statements and the subject matter 
that has been audited. 

(g) Legal basis.    Audit opinions and reports should identify the legislation or other authority 
providing for the audit. 

(h) Compliance   with standards.     Audit opinions and reports should indicate the auditing 
standards or practices followed in conducting the audit, thus providing the reader with an 
assurance that the audit has been carried out in accordance with generally accepted 
procedures. 

(i)  Timeliness.     The audit opinion or report should be available promptly to be of greatest 
use to readers and users, particularly those who have to take necessary action. 
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Annexure 13 

Report of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India 

To 

(Project Implementing Authority) 

 

Report on the Project Financial Statements 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the ___________ Project

financed under Asian Development Bank Loan No.   __________, which comprise the Statement 

of Receipts and Payments, the Statement of Expenditure   by Category and Financier, the 

Statement of Disbursement1   and related notes for the year ended ________ 

OR 

In case, the PIA is maintaining Balance Sheet and statement of Income and Expenditure 
following para may be substituted: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements along with Balance Sheet 
balance sheet, income and expenditure statement and Cash Flow Statement and related 
statements   of the ________ Project financed  under  Asian  Development   Bank  Loan 
No.______               ,  for the year ended _________,                 . 

These    statements    are   the   responsibility    of   the   Project's    management.    Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements based on our 
audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards promulgated by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.  Those Standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement.  Our audit examines, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the sources 
and applications of funds of Project for the year ended [insert date] in accordance with 
Government of India accounting standards.' 

 

1       Insert titles of other required statements and schedules included in or annexed to the 
project financial statements, if any. 

 

2    Until the Ministry of Finance prescribes adoption of the accounting standards pronounced 
by GASAB or other body such as IPSAS, the accounting standards followed by the 
Government of India shall be the cash basis of 

Page-29



 

Annexure 13 

 

In addition, in our opinion: 

(a) Proceeds   of the loan from ADB have been utilized   for the purposes   as per ADB Loan I Project 
Agreement 

(b) Financial covenants in the loan agreement [name and number of loan] dated [date of loan] have 
been complied with 

(c)  (i)(a)With   respect   to   SOEs,   adequate   supporting   documentation   has   been maintained to 
support claims to the Asian Development Bank for reimbursements of expenditures  incurred; and 
(b) except for ineligible expenditures  as detailed in the  audit  observations,  if any,  appended  to  
this  audit  report,  expenditures  are eligible for financing under the Loan Agreement. 

(ii)(a) The Imprest Accounts give a true and fair view of the receipts collected and payments made 
during the year ended---; and (b) these receipts and payments support Imprest Account 
liquidations/replenishments during the year. 

 

This report is issued without prejudice to CAG's right to incorporate the audit observations in the Report 
of CAG of India for being laid before Parliament/State or UT Legislature. 

 

[Auditor's  Signature] [Auditor's 

Address] 

 

 

 

accounting applied with due regard to the General Financial Rules, PWD codes, Treasury codes and similar 
financial rules and codes as are in effect and applicable to the operations of the project. 

 

3     The report should be dated as of the date to which the auditor has became aware of and considered the 
effects of events and transactions.  This is generally the final date of fieldwork, as opposed to the date of 
signing the audit report. 
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6. ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 

 

(i) The CA firm must be registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
and in existence for more than 20 (twenty) years. 

 

(ii) The CA firm must have at least 10 (ten) partners, out of which at least 4 (four) partners 
should be Fellow Member of the ICAI. 

 

(iii) The firm must be empaneled with the office of the Comptroller and Auditor General 
(CAG) of India. 

 

(iv) Average turnover of the firm should be more than Rs. 2 crore for the preceding 3 Financial 
Years. 

 

(v) The firm must have completed audit of 3 (three) externally aided projects funded by bi-
lateral or multi-lateral agencies (like ADB/ World Bank, JICA etc.) 

 

(vi) The firm may be registered anywhere in India with at least a branch office in Kolkata. 
 
 
 
Organizations not fulfilling the any of the above criteria need not to apply. 
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7. BID EVALUATION MECHANISM 
 

During evaluation of tender existing Government order in vogue will be followed – 

Auditor will be appointed on the basis of Least Cost Selection (LCS) method which means Firms which fulfill all 

the 6 (six) items of selection criteria will be treated as technically qualified and the firm which quotes lowest 

fees will be selected and engaged as auditor of PMU. Minimum fee for the assignment will be Rs.40,000/- 

(Rupees Forty Thousand only). Firms quoting below this amount will not be considered for appointment. 

 

If there is tie in the lowest fees quoted by the respective bidders then firm having highest average annual turnover 

amongst the firms will be appointed as the auditor. 

 

The proposals shall be evaluated and ranked accordingly by a Committee constituted by WBDWSIP. Both the 

Technical and Financial Proposals shall be submitted separately and both the proposals will be opened 

separately. Financial Proposal of the firms fulfilling all the selection criteria will only be opened. 
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Postal Address with Contact No. & e-mail  

 
Price  Free of Cost 

 

West Bengal Form No.  2911 
Applicable For Works of value up to Rs 25 (Twenty Five) Crore 

 
 

 
Tender No. _______________, Sl. No. ___________________ of ________ (Year) 

 

 
 
 

TENDER AND CONTRACT FOR WORKS 
GENERAL RULES AND DIRECTIONS FOR GUIDANCE OF 

BIDDERS/CONTRACTORS 
 
(A) Applicable for off-line tenders up to Tender Value of Rs. 5.0 lakh 

 
1.   All work proposed for execution by contract will be notified in the form of invitation to 
tender posted in concerned departmental website, e-procurement portal of the Government 
of West Bengal (https://wbtenders.gov.in) and to be published in local news paper for wide 
circulation also in the notice boards at public places signed by the Tender Inviting 
Authority. 
 
This form will state the work to be carried out, the date for submitting and opening of 
tenders as well as the time allowed for carrying out the work; also the amount of earnest 
money to be deposited with the tender, the amount of security deposit to be deposited by 
the successful bidder and the percentage, if any, to be deducted from bills. Copies of the 
specification, design & drawings and other documents required in connection with the 
work, signed for the purpose of identification by the Authority inviting Tender shall also be 
open for inspection by the contractor at the office of the Tender Inviting Authority during 
Office hours. 
 

2.   In the event of the tender being submitted by a firm, it must be signed separately by 
each member thereof, or, in the event of absence of any of the partners, it must be signed 
on his/her behalf by a person holding a Power-of-Attorney authorizing him/her to do so. 
Such power-of-attorney is to be produced with the tender, and in the case of a firm carried 
on by one member of a joint family; it must disclose that the firm is duly registered under 
the Indian Partnership Act.  
 

3.  Acceptance of measurements entered and bills raised on account of a work, when 
executed by a firm, must also be signed by the several partners, except where the 
contractors are described in their tender as a firm in which case the receipts must be 
signed in the name of the firm by one of the partners or by some other person having 
authority to give effectual receipt for the firm. 
 

4.    Any person who submits a tender shall fill up the usual printed form, stating at what 
rate he or she is willing to undertake the work. Tenders which propose any alteration in 
the work specified in the said form of invitation to tender, or in the time allowed for 
carrying out the work, or which contain any other conditions of any sort, will be liable to 
rejection. No single tender shall include more than one work, but contractors who wish to 
tender for two or more works shall submit a separate tender for each. Tenders shall have 
the name and number of the work to which they refer, written outside the sealed 
envelopes. 
 

5.  The Tender Inviting Authority or his/her duly authorized representative will open 
tenders in presence of intending contractors/bidders who may be present at the time, and 
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will enter the bid amounts as percentage rates above or below or at par of the tender BOQ 
of several tenders in a comparative statement in a suitable form. In the event of a tender 
being accepted, a receipt shall thereupon be given to the contractor/bidder who shall 
thereupon for the purpose of identification, sign copies of specifications and other 
documents mentioned in the Rules. In the event of a tender being rejected, the earnest 
money with such unaccepted tender shall be refunded within 10 days from the date on 
which the tender is decided, provided the contractor(s) present himself/herself before the  
Tender Inviting Authority to take the earnest money refund. 
 
6. The accepting authority reserves the right to reject any or all of the tenders without 
assigning any reasons to the participating bidders and he/she will not be bound to accept 
either the lowest tender or any of the other tenders. 
 
7.  Receipt of an accountant or clerk for any money paid by the contractor/bidder will not 
be considered as an acknowledgement of payment to the Tender Inviting Authority and the 
contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that he/she procures a receipt signed by the 
Tender Inviting Authority, or a duly authorized representative. 
 
8.  The Memorandum of work tendered for, and the schedule of materials to be supplied by 
the executing Department at their supply/issue rates, shall be filled in and completed in 
the office of the Tender Inviting Authority before the tender form is issued. If a form is 
issued to an intending bidder/contractor without having been so filled in and completed, 
he/she shall request the office to have this done before he/she completes and delivers 
his/her tender. 
  
(B) Applicable for e-tenders of value above Rs. 5.0 Lakh 
 

1. All works of tender value above Rs. 5.00 lakh proposed for execution through this 
contract document are to be notified and published in the form of notice inviting e-tender 
(e-NIT) in the designated official tender website of Government of West Bengal having URL 
https://wbtenders.gov.in, and uploaded simultaneously in the URL of concerned 
Department inviting Tenders. Thus the tender may be seen and downloaded by logging into 

- , digitally signed by the concerned Tender Inviting 
Authority and its corresponding abridged notice also published on the same date in the 
print media. 
 

2.  This e-Notice Inviting Tender (e-NIT) will state the work to be carried out, the date 
for encrypting ( submitting) and  decrypting (opening)  of e-tenders, the time allowed for 
carrying out the work; amount of earnest money to be deposited with the e-tender; 
procedure for submission of EMD, amount of security to be furnished by the successful 
bidder/contractor, security/ performance security to be deducted from running account 
bills, copies of specifications, Bill of Quantities, design and drawings and any other 
document required in connection with the work, digitally signed for the purpose  of 
identification by the Tender Inviting Authority.  
 

3. Intending contractors/bidders are required to download the e-tender documents 
directly from the website stated above. Tender is required to be submitted online by the 
intending bidders by authorized e-Tokens provided as DSC. This is the only mode of e-
submission of tender and document(s). All information posted in the website consisting of 
e-NIT, WB Form No. 2911, Tender Bill of Quantities (BOQ), corrigenda notices and 
drawings etc., if any, shall form part of the Contract. Details of procedure of submission 

notice of e-tender (e-NIT). 
 

4.  All the documents uploaded by the Tender Inviting Authority forms an integral part of 
the tender contract/agreement. Contractors/bidders are required to upload the entire set 
of tender documents along with other related documents as asked for in the e-tender 
through the above website(s) within the stipulated date and time as given in the e-NIT. 
Tenders are to be submitted in two folders at a time for each work, one being the 

 Bid Bid . The contractor/ bidder shall carefully go 
through all the documents and prepare to upload the scanned documents in Portable 
Document Format (PDF) in the designated link in the web portal as their Technical Bid. 
He/she needs to fill up the rates of items/percentage in the BOQ downloaded for the work 
in the designated cell and upload the same again in the designated link in the portal as 
their Financial Bid. Documents uploaded are virus scanned and digitally signed using the 
Digital Signature Certificate (DSC). Contractors/bidders should especially take note of all 
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the addenda and corrigenda related to the e-tender and upload all of these documents 
also as a part of their tender document. 
 

5. Documents uploaded by the contractors/bidders with all information & rates 
comprising Technical and Financial bids cannot be changed after last/end date for 
submission of the e-tender. 
 

6.  Deed of Consortium/Partnership Firm, and documents of their registration in the form 
of certified -IX of 
1932), GST, & PAN (Permanent Account Number) as per RBI guidelines/above Rs. 
50,000/- may be compulsorily furnished for all contracts and all other statutory clearances 
defined in the e-NIT. 
 

7.  The tender evaluation and accepting authorities reserve the right to reject any or all of 
the tenders without assigning any reasons and he/she will not be bound to accept either 
the lowest tender or any of the tenders. 
 

8.  Withdrawal of e-Tender once the bid has been submitted online and after passing of 
end date for submission which has been accepted for further processing is not allowed. 
EMD will be forfeited by the Government and the bidder/contractor penalized in terms of 
provisions in the notice of the tender. 
 

9.  Generally Bids will be valid for 120 days from the date of opening of the financial 
proposal. However, extension of bid validity may be suitably considered by the Tender 
Inviting Authority, if required, subject to obtaining a written confirmation of the 
contractor/bidder(s) to that effect. 
 
 

TENDER FOR WORKS 
 
I/We on behalf of the Governor hereby tender  for the execution  of the work  specified in 
the underwritten Memorandu  within the time specified in such Memoran   at 
the rates  specified  therein,  and  in  accordance,  in  all  respects  within the Rules 
contained in clauses hereinafter,  in al l  of the annexed Genera l  Conditions of Contract 
(GCC), Special  C onditions of Contract (SCC) and with such other materials as are 
provided for, by and in all other respects in accordance and with such conditions so far 
as applicable. 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
   
 
  (b) Estimated cost put to Tender                        Rs 
   
  (c) Earnest Money Deposit                    Rs. 
 

  (d) Security Deposit (including earnest money)    ...     Rs 
 

  (e) Percentage, if any, to be deducted from bill     ...     Rs     
                             
       
                           
 

  (f)  Time allowed for the work from date of written order to 
       Commence   months. 
 

For offline tender during submission of bid and during execution of Agreement for online 
tender 

Name of Work 
Tendered 

Amount Put to 
Tender 

Rate Quoted by the 
Bidder (% above or 

less or at par) 

Tendered Amount 
(Contract Price both 
in words & figures) 

    

_______________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

(a) If several sub-works 
are included, they 
should be detailed in a 
separate list 
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Should this Tender be accepted, I/we hereby agree to abide by and fulfill all of the 
terms and provisions of the said conditions of contract annexed hereto so far as applicable, 
or in default thereof to forfeit and pay  to the Governor or his/her successions in office, 
the sums of money mentioned  in the said conditions. 
 
A sum of Rs . * has been furnished through online net 
banking/RTGS/NEFT transfer as earnest money deposit  [(a) the full value of which is to 
be absolutely forfeited to the Governor  or  his/her successors  in  office,  without  
prejudice  to  any  other  rights  or  remedies  of  the  said Governor  or  his  successors  in  
office.  Should  I/we  not  deposit the  full  amount  of security specified in the above 

morandu   in accordance with clause I(A) of the said conditions of contract, the said 
sum of Rs  shall be retained by the Government as on account of such security as 
aforesaid:(b) the full value of which shall be retained  by Government  on account of the 
security deposit specified in clause I (B) of the said conditions of contract]. 
 
Dated the                             Day of                                    20                          
                 
     X                                          T 
(Witness) 
Address 
Occupation 
 
 
The above tender is here by accepted by me for and on behalf of the Governor of the State 
of west Bengal 
 
      XX 
 
 
Dated the _________________ Day of _________________ (Month) __________ (Year)                                       
 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT 
 
Clause 1   1.1 Earnest Money - The person/persons who intend to participate in the 
Tender for an Estimated Amount up to Rs. 25 (Twenty Five) Crore shall have to deposit 
Earnest Money @ 2% (Two percent) of the Estimated Amount put to Tender or Rs 10 Lakh, 
whichever is lower. 
                          
        In case of offline tender earnest money is to be submitted in the form of Bank Draft 
or Bankers Cheque. 
        In case of Online Tender (e-Tender) earnest money is to be deposited  through e-
tender portal (https://wbtenders.gov.in) by selecting from either of the following payment 
modes: 
 

i) Net banking (any of the banks listed in the ICICI Bank Payment gateway) in case of 
payment through ICICI Bank Payment Gateway. 

ii) RTGS/NEFT in case of offline payment through bank account in any Bank with 
his/her tender/quotation as per Memorandum No. 3975-F(Y) dated: - 28.07.2016 of 
Secretary to the Government of  West Bengal, Finance Department. The L1 bidder 
shall make the Formal Agreement after getting the Letter of Acceptance (LOA) issued 
by the Tender Accepting Authority. Failure to make the Formal Agreement within the 
time period as prescribed in the Letter of Acceptance (LOA) for the purpose, may be 
construed as an attempt to disturb the tendering process and will be dealt with 
accordingly in a legal manner as deemed fit including blacklisting the bidder. 

      
             1.2  Security Deposit -  While making  any payment to the person(s) whose 
tender has been accepted  (hereinafter shall be called the contractor) for work done 
under the contract, the authority making payment shall deduct such sum which together 
with the Earnest Money already deposited and converted into security deposit, shall 
amount to 10% of the value of works executed at the material point of time and paid 
during the progressive running accounts bills, so that total deduction together with 

*Give 
particulars 
and 
numbers 
 
Strike out 
(a) or (b) 
as 
applicable. 

T Signature of 
Contractor before 
submission of 
tender 
 
X Signature of 

Witness to 
Contractor s 
signature 
 

XX  Signature of 
the Execut ive  
En gin eer /AE 
on behalf of the 
Department. 
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Earnest Money constitute 10% of the tendered value of work actually done. 
 

In case of excess/and supplementary work over the tendered amount, additional security 
@ of 10% of such additional amount is to be deposited for all such excess/ and 
supplementary works beyond the tendered amount before payment of final bill. 
 

Compensation of all other sums of money payable by the contractor to the Government 
under the terms of the contract may be deducted from the security deposit. 
   
However, even though the earnest money deposited exceeds the prescribed percentage, 
due to reduction of tendered amount due to any reason whatsoever, such additional 
earnest money shall be deemed to have been converted into security and further 
deductions from progressive bills shall be made, taking into consideration the enhanced 
component of earnest money so converted into security. 
 

Security deduction will not normally be required for hiring of inspection vehicles and 
boats etc., supply of tools & plants, furniture and computer peripherals. Separate 
agreement may be required in those cases, particularly for consultancy and RFP for EPC, 
which shall be made in standard formats to be approved by the Government.  
   
After completion of the work, the Contractor may opt for refund of the Security Deposit 
by replacing equal amount of Bank Guarantee of scheduled Bank valid up to 3 months 
beyond the defect liability period.  
 
Additional Performance Security @ 10% of the tendered amount in the form of Bank 
Guarantee from a Scheduled Bank, valid up to the date of completion of work, shall be 
obtained from the successful bidder, if the accepted bid value is 80% or less than the 
estimated amount put to tender. 
 

If the bidder fails to submit Additional Performance Security within 7 (seven) working 
days from the date of LoA or the time period as approved by the Tender inviting 
Authority, his Earnest Money will be forfeited. 
 

If the bidder fails to complete the works successfully, the Additional Performance 
Security along with Security Deposit lying with the Government shall be forfeited at any 
time during the pendency of contract period as per relevant Clauses of the Contract. 
 

Necessary provisions regarding deductions of Security Deposit from the progressive bills 
of the Contractor as per relevant clauses of the contract will in no way be affected/ 
altered by this Additional Performance Security. 
 
Clause 2.  The time allowed for carrying out the work as entered in the tender shall be 
strictly observed by the contractor and shall be reckoned from the date on which the order 
to commence work is given to the contractor. The work shall throughout the stipulated 
period of the contract be proceeded with all due diligence. Time being deemed to be the 
essence of the contract on the part of the contractor, the contractor shall be bound in all 

the work. In the event of the contractor failing to comply with any of the conditions 

 
 

If the contractor fails to commence and/or maintain required progress viz. Milestones 
defined in the Notice Inviting Tender over the total time allotted for its full completion 
and in terms of clause 5 or fails to complete the work and clear the site on or before 
the end of contract period or extended date of completion, he/she shall, without 
prejudice to any other right or remedy available under the law on account of such 
breach, pay as agreed compensation to the implementing Department. 
 

This will also apply to items or group of items for which a separate period of 
completion has been specified. 
 
Compensation for delay of work:  @ 2% (Two percent) of the tendered value of 
work arrived for each month of delay to be computed on per day basis subject to 
the ceiling limit of security deposit already withheld or due to be withheld 
during imposition of the said clause and minimum payable compensation 
equivalent to the Earnest Money deposited (EMD). 
 

Compensation 
for delay 
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Provided always, that the total amount of compensation for delay, to be paid under this 
clause shall not exceed 10% of the tendered value of work or the tendered value of the item 
or group of items of the work, for which a separate period of completion is originally given. 
 

The amount of compensation may be adjusted or set-off against any sum payable to the 
contractor under this contract, if the contractor catches up with the progress of work 
subsequently, part or full of the desired progress as per the contract in accordance with 
the decision of the Tender Accepting Authority, under powers delegated by Government to 
be communicated by the Engineer-in-Charge, the withheld amount shall be released. 
However, no interest, whatsoever, shall be payable on such withheld amount. 
 
Force majeure  :-If the work(s) be delayed for the following reasons:- 
Due to war, internal emergency and other conditions such as abnormally bad weather, 
flood, cyclone natural calamity or serious loss or damage by fire or civil commotion, the 
contractor shall immediately give notice thereof in writing to the Engineer-in-charge but 
shall nevertheless use constantly his/her best endeavors to prevent or make good the 
delay and shall do all that may be reasonably required to the satisfaction of the Engineer-
in-charge to proceed with the works. 
 
Clause 3. Subject to other provisions contained in this clause, the Engineer-in-charge 
with the prior approval of Tender Accepting Authority, may, without prejudice to his/her 
any other rights, remedy against the Contractor in respect of any delay, inferior 
workmanship, any claims for damages and/or any other provision of the contract or 
otherwise, and whether the date of completion has or has not been elapsed, by notice in 
writing, absolutely determine the contract in any of the following cases: 
 

(i) If the Contractor has been given by the Engineer-in-Charge a notice in writing to 
rectify, reconstruct or replace any defective work or that work is being performed 
in an inefficient or otherwise improper or un-workman like manner, shall omit to 
comply with the requirements of such notice for a period of seven days thereafter;  

(ii) If the Contractor has without reasonable cause suspended the progress of work, or 
has failed to proceed with the work with due diligence so that, in the opinion of the 
Engineer-in-Charge he/she will be unable to secure completion of the work by the 
schedule date for completion, and continues to do so after a notice of seven days in 
writing from the Engineer-in-charge; 

(iii) If the Contractor fails to complete the work within the stipulated date or the 
Milestones/items of work within individual dates of completion, if any, stipulated 
on or before such date(s) of completion and does not complete them or reach the 
defined Milestones within the period specified in the notice given in writing to that 
effect by the Engineer-in-charge; 

(iv) If the Contractor persistently neglects to carry out his/her obligations under the 
contract and/or commits default by not complying with any of the terms & 
conditions of the contract and does not remedy it, or take effective steps to remedy 
it, within seven days after a notice in writing is given to him/her to that effect by 
the Engineer-in-Charge; 

(v) If the Contractor being an individual, or a firm, or any partner thereof, shall at any 

of his/her Estate made against him/her, or take any proceedings for liquidation or 
composition (other than a voluntary liquidation for the purpose of amalgamation or 
reconstruction) under any Insolvency Act for the time being in force, or make any 
conveyance or assignment of his/her effects or composition or arrangement for the 
benefit of his/her creditor or purport to do so, or if any application be made under 
Insolvency Act for the time being in force for the sequestration of his/her Estate, or 
if a trust deed is executed by him/her for benefit of his/her creditors; 

(vi) If the Contractor being a Company pass a resolution or the court delivers an order 
of judgement that the Company shall be wound up, or if a receiver or a manager on 
behalf of a creditor be appointed, or if a circumstance arise which entitle the Court 
or the creditor to appoint a receiver or a manager or which entitle the court to 
issue a winding up order; 

(vii) If the Contractor shall suffer an execution order being levied on his/her goods and 
allows it to be continued for a period of 21 days; 

(viii) If the Contractor assigns without prior written approval of the Tender Accepting 

Contractor 
remains liable 
to pay 
compensation, if 
action is not 
taken under 
Clause 3 

Action when whole 
of security deposit 
is forfeited 
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Authority, transfers, sublets (engagement of labour on piece work basis or of 
labour with materials not to be incorporated in the work, shall not be deemed to be 
subletting) or otherwise parts with or attempts to assign, transfer, sublet or 
otherwise parts with the entire work or any portion thereof without prior written 
approval of the Engineer in charge; 

(ix) AND THEREFORE, the Contractor has made himself/herself liable for action under 
any of the cases aforesaid, the Engineer-in-charge on behalf of the Government 
with the prior approval of Tender Accepting Authority, shall have the powers to 
adopt any of the following actions, as he/she may deem best suited to the interest 
of the Government:- 

(a) To determine the contract as aforesaid, of which rescission notice in writing 
and costs to be recovered for works since executed subject to a minimum of 
the amount of Earnest Money deposited by the Contractor under the hand of  
Engineer-in-charge, shall be the conclusive evidence. Upon such 
determination, the Earnest Money Deposit, Security Deposit already recovered 
for executed works and performance guarantee, if any under the contract shall 
be liable to be forfeited and shall be absolutely at the disposal of the 
Government.  

(b) After giving notice to the Contractor to measure up the work executed and to 
take such whole or the balance or part thereof, as shall be un-executed out of 
his/her hands, and to give it to another Contractor to complete the balance 
work.  The Contractor, whose contract is determined or rescinded as above, 
shall not be allowed to participate in the tendering process for the balance 
work. 

(c) To employ labour paid by the implementing Department, and to supply 
materials,  to  carry  out  the  works  or  any  part  of  the  work,  debarring  the 
contractor and debiting the cost of labour and price of materials (of the amount of 
which cost and price determined by certificate of the Engineer-in-Charge shall 
be final and conclusive against the contractor) and crediting him/her with the 
value of the work done, in all respects in the same manner and at the same 
rates as  if  it  had  been  carried  out  by  the  contractor  under  the  terms  of  
his/her contract;  the certificate  of the Executive Engineer  as to the value of 
the work done shall be final and conclusive against the contractor. 

In the event of above course being adopted by the Engineer-in-charge, the Contractor 
shall have no claim of compensation for any loss sustained by him/her by reason of 
his/her having purchased or procured any material or entered into any engagement or 
made any advances on any account or with a view to execute the work or the 
performance of the contract. In case, action is taken under any of the provisions 
aforesaid, the contractor shall not be entitled to recover or be paid any sum for any work 
thereof actually performed under this contract, unless and until the Engineer-in-charge 
has certified in writing that the performance of such work and value payable in respect 
thereof, and he/she shall only be entitled to be paid the value so certified. 

 

Clause 3A.  In case, the work cannot be started due to reasons not within the control of 
the Contractor within 1/4th (one fourth) of the stipulated time for completion of the work 
or 45 days whichever is less, which is accepted as a valid & justified reason by the 
Tender Accepting Authority, either party viz. Contractor & the Engineer-in-Charge may 
close the contract with the approval of Tender Accepting Authority. In such an 
eventuality, the earnest money deposited and the security of the contractor shall be 
refunded, but no payment on account of interests, loss of profit or damages etc. shall be 
payable at all. 

 

Clause 3B.  In case a continuing work cannot be completed due to reasons beyond the 
control of the contractor, like Force Majeure enumerated later under Clause 5, the 
contract may be terminated as stated in clause 3A above by the Engineer-in-Charge 
with the consent of the contractor and approval of the Tender Accepting Authority. 

 

Clause 4.   In  cases  in  which  any  of  the  powers  conferred  upon  the Engineer-in-
Charge under Clause 3 hereof shall have become exercisable and the same had not 

Power to take 

possession of or 
require removal 
of or sell 

 
plant 

Contractors 
remains liable to 
pay compensation 
if action not taken 
under Clause 3 
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been previously exercised, non-exercising thereof shall  not constitute as a waiver  of  any  
of  the conditions hereto, and such powers shall, notwithstanding be exercisable in the 
event of any future case of default by the contractor,  for which by any clause or 
clauses hereof, he/she  is  declared  liable  to  pay  compensation  amounting  to whole  of  
his/her  security deposit,  and  the  liability  of  the  contractor  for  past  and  future  
compensation  shall remain  unaffected.  In the  event  of  the  Engineer-in-Charge putting  
in force  either  of the powers under ix (a) or (c) vested with him/her under the preceding 
clause, he/she may if he/she so desires, take possession of all or any tools & plant, 
materials and stores, in or upon the work, or the site thereof, or belonging to the 
contractor, or procured by him/her and intended to be used for  execution  of  the  work,  
or  any  part  thereof,  paying  or  allowing  for  the  same  in account at the contract rates or 
in case of these not being applicable, at current market rates to be certified by the 
Engineer-in-Charge whose certificate thereof, shall be final and binding. Otherwise, the 
Engineer-in-Charge may deliver notice in writing to the contractor or his/her clerk, 
foreman or other authorized agent, requiring him/her to remove such tools & plant, 
materials or stores from the premises within a time to be specified in such notice; and in 
the event of the contractor failing to comply with any such requisition, the Engineer-in-
Charge may remove them at the contractor s expense or sale them by p u b l i c  auction 
or private sale on account of the contractor and at his/her risk, in all respects, and the 
certificate of the Engineer-in-Charge as  to  the  expense  of  any  such  removal,  and  the  
amount  of  the proceeds  and  expense  of  any  such  sale  shall  be  final and conclusive 
against the contractor.     

 
Clause 5.  

the essence of the contract. Execution of work shall commence from such time period 
as mentioned in the said schedule, or from the date of handing over of the site to the 
contractor whichever is later. If the contractor commits default in commencing 
execution of the work as aforesaid within thirty days, without justifiable reasons 
included under Force Majeure or other such reasons beyond the control of the 
contractor, in which case to be reported within seven days by the contractor, 
considered valid and cogent by the Engineer-in-Charge, the Engineer-in-Charge shall 
after passing of thirty days from the date of scheduled commencement of work as per 
work order, with the prior approval of the Tender Accepting Authority, without 
prejudice to any other right to remedy available in law, be at liberty to apply clause 2 
and subsequently clause 3 of the tender document. 
 

5.1 As soon as possible after the contract is executed, signed and agreed, the 

(Milestone) and get it approved by the Engineer-in-Charge. The chart shall be 
prepared in direct relation to the time slated in the Notice Inviting Tender (NIT) 
document, for completion of items or group of items of the work. It shall indicate 
the forecast of the dates of commencement and completion of various trades of 
sections of the work. This may be amended, as necessary, by an agreement 
between the Engineer-in-Charge and the contractor within the limitations of 
time imposed in the NIT document. Further, to ensure good progress during 
execution of work, the contractor shall in all cases, in which the time allowed for 
any work exceeds one month (save and except for special jobs for which a 
separate programme has been agreed upon) to complete the work as per defined 

the type and nature of work, and that 
e broken up against achievement of those stages during the 

construction / progress of work to ensure a periodic monitoring of progress and 
enable the contractor and the Engineer-in-Charge to take corrective measures 
from time to time. 

 

5.2   If the work(s) be delayed by: 
        Force majeure, due to war, internal emergency and other conditions such as 

abnormally bad weather, flood, cyclone natural calamity or serious loss or 
damage by fire or civil commotion, strike or lockout affecting procurement of 
construction materials or any of the trades employed in the work, or any other 
cause which in the absolute discretion of the Engineer-in-Charge is beyond the 
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contractor shall immediately give notice in writing to the Engineer-in-Charge but 
shall nevertheless use constantly his/her best endeavors to prevent or make 
good the delay and shall do all that may be reasonably required to the 
satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge to proceed with the works. 

 

5.3  
time, to be eligible for consideration, shall be made by the contractor in writing 
within fourteen days of the happening of the event causing delay in the 
prescribed form. The contractor may also, if practicable, indicate in such a 
request the period for which extension is desired. 

 

5.4   If any such case the Engineer-in-Charge, with the approval of Tender Accepting 
Authority, may give a fair and reasonable extension of time and reschedule the 

communicated to the contractor by the Engineer-in-Charge with the approval of 
Tender Accepting Authority in writing within maximum 1 (one) month of the 
date of receipt of such request. 

 
Clause 6.  On completion of work, the contractor shall be furnished with a certificate  by  
the Engineer-in-Charge of such completion, but no such certificate shall be given, nor 
shall the work be considered to be completed until and unless the contractor  shall 
have removed from the work premises on which the work is executed, all scaffolding, 
surplus materials and rubbish, and cleaned off the dirt  from wood works, doors,  
windows, floors, or other parts of any building, upon or about which the work is 
executed, or of which he may have had possession for the purpose of the execution thereof, 
nor until the work shall  have  been  measured  by  the  Engineer-in-charge  whose  
measurements  shall  be binding and conclusive against the contractor. If the contractor 
shall fail to comply with the  requirements  of  this  clause  as  to  removal  of  scaffolding,  
surplus  materials  and rubbish and cleaning off dirt on or before the date fixed for 
completion of the work, the Engineer-in-charge may at the expense of the contractor 
remove such scaffolding, surplus materials  and rubbish,  and dispose of the same as 
he/she thinks fit, and clean off such dirt as aforesaid; and the contractor shall forthwith 
b e  b o u n d  t o  pay the amount of all expense so  incurred,  and  shall  have  no  claim  in  
respect  of  any  such  scaffolding  or  surplus materials as aforesaid, except for any sum 
actually realized by the sale thereof. 
 
Clause 7.  No running account bill payment shall be normally made for works less than 30 
(Thirty) percent of Tendered Value or up to Rs 25.00 lakh, whichever is less, till after the 
whole of the work shall have been completed and certificate of completion given. For 
works of tendered value above Rs 25.00 lakh, for running account bill payment, the 
contractor shall on submitting a bill of at least Rs 25.00 lakh there for, be entitled to 
receive a payment proportionate to the part thereof, approved and passed by the 
Engineer-in-charge, whose certificate of such approval and passing of the sum so payable 
shall be final and conclusive against the contractor. But all such intermediate payments 
shall be regarded as payments by way of advance against the final m e a s u r e d  b i l l  
payment only  and  not  as  payments  for  work  actually  done  and  completed,  and  shall  
not preclude the bad, unsound, and imperfect or unskillful work which is to be removed 
and taken away and reconstructed, or re-erected or to be considered as an admission  of 
the due performance of the contract, or any part thereof, in any respect, or the accruing 
of any  claim, nor  shall it conclude, determine or affect in any  way the  powers of the 
Engineer-in-charge under these conditions or any of them as to the final settlement and 
adjustment of the accounts or otherwise or in any other way vary or affect the contract. 
The final bill shall be submitted by the contractor within one month of the date fixed for 
completion  of  the  work,  otherwise the Engineer-in-charge  certificate of the measurement 
and of the total  amount  payable  for the work  accordingly  shall be final and binding on 
all parties. 
 

Clause 8.  W or k s  bill shall be submitted by the contractor each month, after fulfilling 
above clause, on or before the date fixed by the Engineer-in-charge, for all works 
executed during the previous month, and the Engineer-in-charge  shall take or cause to  
take the requisite measurement for the purpose of having the same verified, and the claim 
as far as admissible adjusted, if  possible, before  the  expiry  of fourteen  days  from  the  
presentation of the  bill.  If the contractor does not submit the bill within the time fixed as 
aforesaid, the Engineer-in-charge may depute a Junior Engineer to measure up the said 
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work in presence of the contractor, whose countersignature in the measurement book will 
be sufficient warrant; and the Engineer-in-charge may prepare a bill from such list which 
shall be binding on the contractor in all respects. 
 

Within 10 (Ten) days of completion of work, the contractor shall give notice of such 
completion to the Engineer-in-charge and within 14 (Fourteen) days of receipt of such 
notice, the Engineer-in-charge shall inspect the work, and if there is no defect in the 
work, he/she shall furnish to the contractor a final certificate of completion. Otherwise, 
a provisional certificate of physical completion indicating defects (a) to be rectified by 
the Contractor and/or (b) for which payment will be made at reduced rates, shall be 
issued. Such reduced rate is to be imposed with the approval of Superintending 
Engineer concerned. 
 
 

Clause 8A.  When annual repair and maintenance work is carried out, the splashes and 
droppings from white washing, colour washing, painting etc., on walls, floors, windows 
shall be removed and the surface cleaned simultaneously with the completion of these 
items of work in the individual rooms, quarters or premises etc. where the work is done 
without waiting for the actual completion of all the other items of work in the contract. 
In case, the contractor fails to comply with the requirements of this clause, the 
Engineer-in-Charge shall have the right to get this work done at the cost of the 
contractor either Departmentally or through any other contractor. Before taking such 
action, the Engineer-in-Charge shall give ten days notice in writing to the contractor. 
 
Clause 8B.  The Contractor shall submit completion Plan/Drawing as required in the 

Civil as well as Electrical Works as applicable within 30 days 
of completion of the work. 
 
Clause 9. The Contractor shall submit all bills in printed forms, a s  p e r  f o r m a t  
p r e s c r i b e d  b y  G o v e r n m e n t  o f  W e s t  B e n g a l ,  in the office of the Engineer-
in-Charge, and the charges in the bills shall always be entered at the rates specified in 
tender or in case of any extra work ordered  in  pursuance  of  these  conditions,  and  not  
mentioned  or  provided  for  in  the tender at rates thereinafter provided for such work. 
 
Clause  9A (1)  Payments  due  to the  contractor  may,  if  so desired  by  him/her be made 
to his bank through e-Pradan, details of which has to be directly furnished to the Engineer-
in-charge. 

 

While  the online receipt  given  by  such  Banks  shall  constitute  a  full  and  sufficient 
discharge/acquittance for  the  payment,  the  contractor  should  wherever  possible  
present  his/her bills duly receipted and discharged through his/her Banker/s. 
 

                 (2)  In  the  case  of  bills,  which  the  contractor  presents  for  payment  direct, 
and which  are not  endorsed  in  favour  of  the  Bank,  while  efforts  will  be  made  to  
secure payment to the financing Bank, payments made to the contractor should be 
accepted as full acquittance so far as the Government is concerned. As a part of the 
arrangement, the financing Bank should give the  Government a letter to this effect. 
 

Note 1.  The  procedure  will  not  affect  the usual  rights  of t h e  Government  to 
deduct from contractor s bill, (whether endorsed in favour of a Bank or not) any sum 
due to Government  of account of penalties,  over-payments  etc., on this or any other 
contract with the Governor of the State of  West Bengal. 
 

Note 2.  Nothing contained herein shall operate to create in favour of the Bank any 
rights, claims or equities vis-à-vis the Governor. 
 
Clause 10.  If the specification or estimate of the work provides for use of any special 
description of material to be supplied by the Engineer-in-Charge, (such materials & 
stores and the prices to be charged there for as hereinafter mentioned being so far as 
practicable for the convenience of the contractor, but not so as in any way to control the 
meaning or effect of this contract specified in the schedul
annexed), the contractor shall be supplied with such materials and stores as is required  
from time to time to be used by him/her for the purpose of the contract only, and the 
value of the full quantity of materials and stores so supplied at the rates specified in the 
said schedule or Memorandum may be set off or deducted from any sums then due, or  
thereafter to become due to the contractor under the contract, or otherwise or against or 
from the security deposit, or the proceeds of sale thereof; if the same is held in 
Government securities, the same or a sufficient portion thereof being in this case sold for 
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the purpose. All materials supplied to the contractor shall remain the absolute  property 
of Government, and shall not on any account be removed from the site of the work, and 
shall at all times be open for inspection by the Engineer-in-charge.  Any such material 
unused and in perfectly good condition at the time of the completion or  determination of 
the contract shall be returned to the Engineer-in-ch ice in writing 
under his/her hand, he/she shall so require; but the contractor shall not be entitled to 
return any such material unless with such consent, and shall have no claim for 
compensation on account of any such material so supplied to him/her as aforesaid being 
unused by him, or for any wastage or damage to any such material. 
 
Clause 11. The Contractor shall execute the whole and every part of work in the most   
substantial and workman like manner, and both, as regards to materials and otherwise, in 
every respect, in strict accordance with the specifications. The contractor shall also 
conform exactly, fully and faithfully to the design and drawings, and instructions in 
writing relating to the work signed by the Engineer-in-Charge and lodged in his/her office, 
to which the contractor shall be entitled to have access at such office, or on the site of 
the work for the purpose of inspection during office hours, and the contractor shall, if  
he/she so require, be entitled  at  his/her own  expense  to make  or  cause  to be made 
copies  of  the  specifications,  and  of  all  such  design, drawings  and  instructions  as 
aforesaid. 
 
Clause 12. The Engineer-in-Charge shall have powers to make any alteration in, 
omission from, addition to, or substitution for, the original specifications, drawings, designs 
and instructions, that may appear to him/her to be necessary or recommended by 
Superintending Engineer or the Chief Engineer during the progress of work, and the 
contractor shall be at al l  t imes be bound to carry out these works, in accordance to 
any instructions which may be given to him/her in writing, signed by the Engineer-in-
charge, and such alterations, omissions, additions or substitutions, shall not invalidate the 
contract but shall be deemed to have formed a part of the work included in the original  
tender  and  any  altered,  additional  or  substituted  work  which  the  contractor may be 
directed to do in the manner specified above as a  part of the work shall be carried out by 
the contractor  on the same conditions in all respects on which he/she agreed to do the 
main work, and at the same rates, if any, may be specified in the tender for the main work. 
Time for the completion of the work shall be extended in the proportion that the altered, 
additional or substituted work bears to the original work contract, and the certificate of the 
Engineer-in-charge shall be conclusive as to such proportion.  And, if the altered, 
additional or substituted work includes any class of work, for which no rate is specified  
in the  contract,  then  such class of work  shall  be carried  out at the rates entered in 
the schedule of rates of concerned Works Department applicable in the district,  which 
was in force at the time of acceptance of the contract, minus/plus the percentage which 
the total tendered amount bears to the estimated cost of the entire work put to tender; 
and if the altered, additional or substituted work is not entered in the said schedule of rates, 
payment thereof shall be made by the Engineer-in-charge by determining the rates on 
analysis  worked  out  from  (a)  the  basic rates  of  materials  and labour  provided  in  the 
aforesaid schedule of rates, or (b) the current market rates of materials and labour 
when even  basic rates  for  the  work  are  not  available  in  the  schedule.  In  cases when  
such rates  are  determined  on  analysis  by  the  Engineer-in-charge  under  (a)  above,  the 
stipulated percentage above or below schedule of rates as provided in the contract shall 
also apply, and in case of rates worked out on analysis under (b) above, payment shall 
be made at the rates so determined without application of the said stipulated 
percentage. In the event of any dispute regarding rates determined on  analysis for any 
altered, additional or substituted work under this clause, the decision of the Superintending 
Engineer shall be final and binding. 
 
Clause 13.  If at any time after the commencement of the work the Governor shall for any 
reason whatsoever not require the whole thereof as specified in the tender to be carried 
out, the Engineer-in-charge shall give notice in writing of the fact to the contractor, who  
shall have no claim to any payment or compensation whatsoever on account of any profit 
or advantage which he might  have derived from execution  of the work in full, but which 
he/she did not derive in consequence of the full amount of the work not having been 
carried out; neither shall he/she have any claim for compensation by reason  of any 
alterations having been made in the original specifications, drawings, designs and 
instructions which shall involve any curtailment of the work as originally contemplated. 
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Clause 14.  If it shall appear to the Engineer-in-charge or his/her subordinate engineer  
in-charge  of  the  work,  that  any  work  has  been  executed  with  unsound,  imperfect, or 
unskillful workmanship, or with materials of any inferior description, or that any materials 
or articles provided by the Contractor, for the execution of the work are unsound, or of a 
quality inferior to that contracted for, or otherwise not in accordance with the contract, 
the  contractor shall on demand in writing from the  Engineer-in-charge specifying the 
work, materials or articles complained of notwithstanding that the same may have been 
inadvertently passed, certified and paid for, forthwith rectify or remove and re-construct 
the work so specified in whole or in part, as the case may require, or as the case may be 
remove the materials or articles so specified and provide other proper and suitable materials 
or articles at his/her own proper charge and cost; and in the event of his failing to do so 
within a period to be specified by the Engineer-in-charge in his/her demand aforesaid, 
then the contractor shall be liable to pay compensation at the rate of one percent on the 
amount of the estimate put to tender / on up to date executed work value for every day 
not exceeding ten days, while his/ her failure to do so shall continue and in the case of 
any such failure, the Engineer-in-charge may rectify or remove, and re-execute the work or 
remove and replace with others, the materials or articles complained of as the case may be 
at the risk and expense in all respects of the contractor. 
 
Clause 15.  All work under or in course of execution or executed in pursuance of  the  
contract shall at all times be open to  inspection and supervision of the Engineer-in-Charge 
and all his/her subordinates and also higher Officers / Authority of the Government and 
the contractor shall at all times during the normal  working  hours,  and  at  all  other  
times  at  which  reasonable  notice of the intention of the Engineer-in-charge or his/her 
subordinates to visit the work site shall have been given to the contractor, either 
himself/herself be present to receive orders and instructions, or have  a responsible  
agent duly accredited in writing present for that purpose. Orders given to the contractor  
agent shall be considered to have the same force as if i t  had been given to the 
contractor himself/herself. 
 
Clause 16.  The Contractor shall give, not less than five days notice in writing to the 
Engineer-in-charge or his/her subordinate in-charge of the work, before covering up or 
otherwise placing beyond the reach of measurement any work, in order that the same is 
so covered  up or placed  beyond  the reach  of measurement, and  shall  not  cover  up or 
place beyond the reach of measurement any work without the consent in writing of the 
Engineer-in-charge or his/her subordinate, in-charge of the work; and if any work shall be 
covered  up  or  placed  beyond  the  reach  of  measurement  without  such  notice  having 
been  given  or  consent  obtained,  the  same  shall  be  uncovered  at  the  contractor s 
expense, or, in default thereof no payment or allowance shall be made for such work or 
the materials with which the same was executed.      
 
Clause 17.  If the Contractor or his/her workers or authorized representatives shall  
break, deface, injure or destroy any  part  of  the structure  in  which they  may  be working 
or any building, road, road curbs, fence, canals, water pipes, cables, drains, electric or 
telephone posts or wires, trees, grass or grassland or cultivated ground contiguous to the 
premises on which the work or any part of it is being executed, or if any damage shall 
happen to the work from any cause whatever or any imperfections become apparent in it at 
any time, whether during its execution or within a period of six months after issuance of a 
certificate of its completion by the Engineer-in-Charge, the contractor shall make the same 
good at his/her own expense, or in default, the Engineer-in-Charge may cause the same to 
be made good by other workers, and deduct the expenses (of which the certificate of the 
Engineer-in-Charge shall be final and binding) from any sums, whether under the contract 
or otherwise, that may be then, or at any time thereafter become due to the contractor by 
the Government or from his/her security deposit, or the proceeds of sale thereof, or of a 
sufficient portion thereof, and if the cost in the opinion of the Engineer-in-Charge whose 
opinion shall be final and conclusive against the contractor, making such damage or 
imperfections good shall exceed the amount of such security deposit and/or such sums, it 
shall be lawful for the Government to recover the excess costs from the contractor in 
accordance with the procedure prescribed by any law for the time being in force. 
 
Clause 17A.  The Contractor shall also supply without charge the requisite number of 
persons with the means and materials necessary for the purpose of setting out works, and 
counting, weighing, assisting in the joint measurement or examination at any time and 
from time to time of the work or materials. Failing his/her so doing the same may be 
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provided by the Engineer-in-Charge at the expense of the Contractor and the expenses may 
be deducted from any money due to the contractor under the contract or from his/her 
Security Deposit or the proceeds of sales thereof or of a sufficient portion thereof. The 
Contractor shall also provide all necessary fencing / barricading / providing caution 
boards etc. and light required to protect the public from accident, and shall be bound to 
bear the expenses of defence of every suit, action  or other proceedings at law that may be 
brought by any person for injury sustained owing to neglect of the above precautions and 
to pay any damage and costs which may be awarded in such suit, actions or proceedings 
to any such persons or which may with the consent of the Contractor be paid to 
compromise any claim by any such persons. 
 
Clause 18A.  In every case in which by virtue of the provisions under sub-section (1) of 

implementing Department is 
obliged to pay compensation to a workman employed by the contractor, in execution of 
the works. The implementing Department will recover from the Contractor the amount of 
compensation so paid; and without prejudice to the rights of the Department under sub-
section (2) of section 12, of the said Act, implementing Department shall be at liberty to 
recover such amount or any part thereof by deducting it from the security deposit or from 
any sum due by implementing Department to the Contractor whether under this contract 
or otherwise. The implementing Department shall not be bound to contest any claim made 
against it under sub-section (1) Section 12, of the said Act, except on the written request 
of the contractor and upon his/her giving to the implementing Department full security 
for all costs for which the Department might become liable in consequence of contesting 
such claims. 
 
Clause 18B.  In every case in which by virtue of the provisions under The Contract 

, and its amendments and rules, the 
implementing Department is obliged to pay amount of wages to a workman employed by 
the Contractor in execution of the works, or to incur any expenditure in providing welfare 
and health amenities required to be provided under the above said Act and the rules 
framed by Government from time to  time for the protection of health and sanitary 
arrangements for workers employed by Contractors, executing Department will recover 
from the Contractor, the amount of wages so paid or the amount of expenditure so 
incurred; and without prejudice to the rights of the executing Department under sub-
section(2) of Section 20, and sub-section (4) of Section 21, of the Contract Labour 
(Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970, executing Department shall be at liberty to recover 
such amount or any part thereof by deducting it form the security deposit or from any 
sum due by Executing Department to the Contractor whether under this contract or 
otherwise and the executing Department shall not be bound to contest any claim made 
against it under sub-section (1) of Section 20, sub-section (4) of section 21, of the said 
Act, except on the written request of the Contactor and upon his/her giving to the 
implementing Department full security for all costs for which the Department might 
become liable in contesting such claim. 
 
Clause 19.  The Contractor shall obtain a valid license under the Contract Labour 
(Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970, before the commencement of the work, and continue 
to have valid licenses until the completion of the work.  The contractor shall also abide by 
the provisions of the Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986, Fatal Accident 
Act, 1855, Personal Injuries (Compensation Insurance) Act, 1970. 
 

The Contractor shall also comply with the provisions of the Building and Other 
Construction Workers (Regulation of Em  and 
The Building and Other Construction Workers Welfare Cess Act, 
these requirements shall attract penal provisions of the contract, arising out of the 
resultant non-implementation of such provisions. 
 
Clause 19A.  No labour/s below the age of eighteen years shall be employed in the work 
and the contractor shall abide by the provisions of the Child Labour (Prohibition & 
Regulation) Act, 1986. Employment of female labour/s in works in the neighborhoods of 
sensitive barracks should be avoided as far as possible. 
 
Clause 19B.  The Contractor shall pay to labours employed by him/her either directly or 
through Sub-Contractors, wages not less than fair wages as defined by the Labour 
Commissioner of the State Government under 
Labour Regulations or as per the provisions of the Contract Labour (Regulation and 

Labour 

Payment of 
minimum 
Wages to 
Labour 



14 
 

Abolition) Act, 1970, wherever applicable.  
 

The contractor shall, notwithstanding the provisions of any contract to the contrary, 
cause to be paid fair wage to labour indirectly engaged on the work, including any labour 
engaged by his sub-contractors in connection with the said work, as if the labour had 
been immediately employed by him/her. 
 
 

In respect of all labourers directly or indirectly employed in the works for performance of 
the C  contract, the contractor shall comply with or cause to be 

 the State Government/ 
Government of India, from time to time in regard to payment of wages, wage period, 
deductions from wages, recovery of wages not paid and deductions made without 
authority, maintenance of wage books or wage slips, publication of scale of wage and 
other terms of employment, inspection and submission of periodical returns and all other 
matters likewise in nature or as per the provisions of the Contract Labour (Regulation and 
Abolition) Act, 1970, and the Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment 
and Conditions of Service) Act, 1979, Minimum Wages Act, 1948, wherever applicable. 
 
a)   The Engineer-in-Charge concerned shall have the right to deduct from the money due 

to the contractor any sum required or estimated to be required for making good the 
loss suffered by a worker or workers by reason of non-fulfillment of the conditions of 
the contract for the benefit of the workers, non-payment of wages or of deductions 
made from his/her/their wages which are not justified by their terms of the contract 
or non-observance of the regulations. 

 
b)   Under the provision of Weekly Holidays Act, 1986, the contractor is bound to allow to 

the labours, directly or indirectly employed in the work, one day rest for 6 days of 
continuous work, and pay wages at the same rate as for duty. In the event of default, 
the Engineer-in-charge shall have the right to deduct the sum or sums not paid on 
account of wages for weekly holidays to any labour and pay the same to the persons 
entitled thereto from any money due to the contractor by the Engineer-in-charge 
concerned. 

 

The contractor shall also comply with the provisions of the Employees Liability Act, 
2008 , Wor and or the amendments 
thereof or any other law relating thereto, and the rules made there under from time to 
time. 
The Contractor shall indemnify and keep indemnified the implementing Department 
against payments to be made under and for the observance of the laws aforesaid and PW 

abour Regulations without prejudice to this right to claim indemnity from 
his/her sub-contractors. 

 

The laws aforesaid shall be deemed to be a part of this contract and any breach thereof 
shall be deemed to be a breach of this contract. 
 

Whatever is the minimum wage for the time being, or if the wage payable is higher than 
minimum wage, such wage shall be paid by the contractor to the workers directly without 
the intervention of any Dafadar, and that Dafadar shall not be entitled to deduct or 
recover any amount from the minimum wage payable to the workers as and by way of 
commission or otherwise. 
 

The contractor shall ensure that no amount by way of commission or otherwise is 
deducted or recovered by the Dafadar from the wage of workers. 
 
Clause 19C.  In respect of all labours directly or indirectly employed in the work for the 

tract, the contractor shall at his/her own 
expenses, arrange for the safety provisions as framed from time to time by the competent 
authority, and shall at his/her own expense provide all facilities in connection therewith. 
In case the contractor fails to make arrangement, and fail to provide necessary facilities as 
aforesaid, he/she shall be liable to pay a penalty of Rs. 2000/- for each default, and in 
addition the Engineer-in-Charge shall be at liberty to make arrangement and provide 
facilities as aforesaid and recover the costs incurred in their behalf, from the contractor.  
 
Clause 19D.  For the works above Rs. 2.0 crore, the Contractor shall submit by the 4th  
and 19th of every month to the Engineer-in-charge, a true statement showing in respect 
of the second half of the preceding month and the first half of the current month 
respectively- 
 

The number of labourers employed by him/her on the work, their working hours, and the 
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wages paid to them; 
 

Accidents that had occurred during the said fortnight showing the circumstances under 
which it had happened, and the extent of damage and injury caused by them, and the 
number of female workers who have been allowed maternity benefits according to Clause 
19F of the contract and the amount paid to them; 
 

Failing which the contractor shall be liable to pay to the Department, a sum not exceeding 
Rs. 2000/- for each default or materially incorrect statement. The decision of the 
Engineer-in-charge shall be final in deducting from any bill due to the contractor; the 
amount levied as fine and would be binding on the contractor. 
 
Clause 19E.  In respect of all labours directly or indirectly employed in the work for the 
performance of the 
cause to be compiled with all the rules framed by the Government from time to time for 
the protection of health and sanitary arrangements of workers employed by the 
contractor. 
 
Clause 19F. In the event of the contractor(s) committing a default or breach of any of the 

health 
and sanitary arrangement for the workers as amended from time to time or furnishing any 
information or submitting or filing any statement under the provisions of the above 
Regulations and Rules which is materially incorrect, he/she shall, without prejudice to 
any other liability, pay to the Department a sum not exceeding Rs. 2000/- for every 
default, breach or furnishing, making, submitting, filing such materially incorrect 
statements and in the event of the contractors defaulting continuously in this respect, the 
penalty may be enhanced to Rs. 200/- per day for each day of default subject to a 
maximum of five per cent of the tendered value. The decision of the Engineer-in-charge 
shall be final and binding on the parties. 
 

Should it appear to the Engineer-in-charge that the contractor(s) is/are not properly 
observing and complying to the r Regulations and 
Rules, The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 and Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act 
1970, for the protection of health and sanitary arrangements for work-people employed by 
the contractor(s) (hereina -in-charge shall 
have the power to give notice in writing to the contractor(s) requiring that the said Rules 
be complied with and the amenities prescribed therein be provided to the work-people 
within a reasonable time to be specified in the notice.  If the contractor(s) shall fail within 
the period specified in the notice to comply with and/or observe the said Rules and to 
provide the amenities to the work-people as aforesaid, the Engineer-in-charge shall have 
the power to provide the amenities herein before mentioned at the cost of the 
contractor(s). The contractor(s) shall erect, make and maintain at his/her own expense 
and to approved standards all necessary hutments and sanitary arrangements required 
for his/her/their work-people on the site in connection with the execution of the works, 
and if the same shall not have been erected or constructed, according to approved 
standards, the Engineer-in-charge shall have power to give notice in writing to the 
contractor(s) requiring that the said hutments and sanitary arrangements be remodeled 
and/or reconstruct such hutments and sanitary arrangements according to approved 
standards, and if the contractor(s) shall fail to remodel or reconstruct such hutments and 
sanitary arrangements according to approved standards within the period specified in the 
notice, the Engineer-in-charge shall have the power to remodel or reconstruct such 
hutments and sanitary arrangements according to approved standards at the cost of the 
contractor(s). 
 
Clause 19G.  The contractor shall comply with all the provisions of The Minimum Wages 
Act, 1948, Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970, Employees Liability Act, 
Industrial Dispute Act and Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as amended from time to time 
and rules framed thereunder and other labour laws affecting contract labour that may be 
brought into force by the appropriate authority from time to time. 
 
Clause 19H.  The Engineer-in-charge may require the contractor to remove from the site 
of work, any person or persons engaged/assigned or employed by the contractors upon 
the work who may be determined as insane or incompetent or misconducts 
himself/herself, and the contractor shall forthwith comply with such requirements. 
 
Clause 19I.  It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to see that the 
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building/structure under construction is not occupied by anybody unauthorized during 
construction, and is handed over to the Engineer-in-charge with vacant possession free 
from encumbrances in entirety, If such buildings/structures through completed is 
occupied illegally, then the Engineer-in-Charge shall have the option to refuse to accept 
the said building/structure in that position. Any delay in acceptance on this account will 
be treated as the delay in completion and for such delay a levy up to 5% of tendered value 
of work may be imposed by the Engineer-in-charge whose decision shall be final both with 
regard to the justification and quantum and shall be binding on the contractor. 
 
 

However, the Engineer-in-charge, through a notice, may require the contractor to remove 
the illegal occupations, any time on or before construction and delivery. 
 
Clause 20.  No work shall be done on Sundays without the p r i o r  sanction of the 

Engineer-in-charge. 
 
Clause 21.  The contract shall not be assigned or sublet without specific orders from 
Government in respect of a specified sub-contractor. And if the contractor shall assign or 
sublet his contract, or attempt so to do, or become insolvent or commence any in 
insolvency proceedings or make any composition with his creditor, or attempt to do so, or 
if any bribe, gratuity, gift, loan, perquisite, reward or advantage, pecuniary or otherwise, 
shall either directly or indirectly be given, promised, or offered by the contractor, or any of 
his servants or agents to any public officer or person in the employ of Government in any 
way relating to his office of employment, or if any such officer or person shall become in 
any way directly or indirectly interested in the contract, the Divisional Officer may 
thereupon by notice in writing rescind the contract, and the security deposit of the 
contractor shall thereupon stand forfeited and be absolutely at the disposal of 
Government and the same consequences shall ensure as if the contract had been 
rescinded under the Clause 3 hereof, and in addition the contractor shall not be entitled 
to recover or be paid for any work there for actually performed under the contract. 
 
Clause 22.  All  sums  payable  by  way  of  compensation  under  any  of  these conditions 
shall be considered as reasonable compensation to be applied to the use of Government  
without  reference  to the actual loss or damage sustained  and whether  or not any 
damage shall have been sustained. 
 

 
Clause 23.  Where the contractor is a partnership firm or a consortium, prior approval in 
writing of the Engineer-in-Charge shall be obtained for any change made in the  
constitution of the firm/consortium. Where the contractor is an individual or a Hindu 
Undivided Family (HUF) business concern, such approval as aforesaid shall likewise be 
obtained, before the contractor enters into any partnership agreement/Memorandum of 
Articles whereunder the partnership firm/ consortium would have the right to carry out 
the works hereby undertaken by the contractor. If previous approval as aforesaid is not 
obtained, the contract is liable to be rescinded. 
 
Clause 24.  All works to be executed under the contract shall be executed under the 
direction of Engineer-in-Charge. Further instructions/advices, if felt necessary by 
Superintending Engineer/ Chief Engineer, shall also be binding to be communicated by 
the Engineer-in-Charge. 
 
Clause 25.  Settlement of Disputes and Arbitration: 
 

Except where otherwise provided in the contract, all questions and disputes relating to 
the meaning of the specifications, designs, drawings and instructions hereinbefore 
mentioned and as to the quality of workmanship or materials used on the work or as to 
any other question, claim, right, matter or thing whatsoever, in any way arising out of or 
relating to the contracts, designs, drawings, specifications, estimates, instructions, orders 
or these conditions or otherwise concerning the works, or the executions or failure to 
execute the same, whether arising during the progress of the work, or after the completion 
or abandonment thereof shall be dealt with as mentioned hereinafter: 
 

If the contractor considers any work demanded of him/her to be outside the requirements 
of the contract, or disputes any drawings, record or decision given in writing by the 
Engineer-in-Charge or any matter in connection with or arising out of the contract or 
carrying out of the work to be unacceptable, he/she shall promptly within 15 days 
request the Chairman of the Departmental Dispute Redressal Committee, in writing, for 

Works to be 
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direction of 
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Charge 
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written instruction or decision. Thereupon, the Dispute Redressal Committee shall give its 
written instruction or decision within a period of three months from the date of receipt of 
the C  
 

The Dispute Redressal Committee in each of the Works Departments shall be constituted 
with the following officials as Members:  
 

1 Secretary / Engineer-in-Chief of the Department 
concerned 

Chairman 
 

2 Joint Secretary / Deputy Secretary / any Officer of 
equivalent rank of the Department 

Member 
 

 
3 

One Designated Chief Engineer / Engineer of the 
Department to be nominated by the Department 
concerned. 

Member Secretary 
and Convenor 

 
4 One representative of Finance Department of the 

Government not below the rank of Joint Secretary or 
Financial Advisor in case of the Works Department where 
FA system has been introduced. 

 
Member 

 
 

This provisions will be applicable irrespective of the value of the works to which the 
dispute may relate. 
 
 

Clause 26.  The contractor shall fully indemnify and keep indemnified the implementing 
Department against any action, claim or proceeding relating to infringement or use of any 
patent or design or any alleged patent or design rights and shall pay any royalties which 
may be payable in respect of any article or part thereof included in the contract. In the 
event of any claims made under or action brought against implementing Department in 
respect of any such matter as aforesaid, the contractor shall be immediately notified 
thereof by the implementing Department and the contractor shall be at liberty, at his/ her 
own expense, to settle any dispute or to conduct any litigation that may arise therefrom, 
provided that the contractor shall not be liable to indemnify the implementing Department 
if the infringement of the patent or design or any alleged patent or design right is the 
direct result of an order passed by the Engineer-in-Charge this behalf. 
 
Clause 27.  When the estimate on which the tender is made includes lump sums in 
respect of parts of the work, the contractor shall be entitled to payment in respect of the 
items of works involved or the part of the work in question at the same rates as are payable 
under this contract for such items, or if the part of the work in question is not, in the 
opinion of the Engineer-in-charge, capable of measurement,  certificate in writing of  the  
Engineer-in-charge  shall  be  final  and  conclusive  against  the  contractor  with regard to 
any sum or sums payable to him under the provisions of this clause. 
 

Clause 28.  In the case of any class of work for which there is no such specifications as 
referred to under Clause 11, such work shall be carried out in accordance with the latest 
Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS) specifications. In case there are no such specifications 
in Bureau of Indian Standards, the work shall be carried out as per reputed 

 if accepted by the Engineer-in-Charge. If not available, then 
as per State Government / Union Government accepted and approved specifications. In 
case there are no such specifications as required above, the work shall be carried out in 
all respects in accordance with the instructions and requirements of the Engineer-in-
Charge which is  approved by the Tender Accepting Authority. 
 
Clause 29.  The  expression  wor   or  work   where  used in these  conditions shall, 
unless there be something either in the subject or context repugnant to such construction,  
be constructed and taken to mean the works by or by virtue of the contract constructed to  
be executed, whether temporary or permanent and whether original, altered, substituted or 
additional. 
 

Clause 30.  The Contractor(s) shall at his/their own cost provide his/their labour with 
hutting on an approved site, and shall make arrangements for conservancy and 
sanitation in the labour camp to the satisfaction of the local Public Health and Medical 
Authorities. He/they shall also at his/their own cost make arrangements for the laying 

Lump sum as in 
estimates 

Definition of 
works 

Action where 
no specification 



18 
 

of  pipe  lines  for  water  supply  to  his/their  labour  camp  from  the  existing  mains 
wherever available, and shall pay all fees, charges and expenses in connection with there 
and incidental thereto. 
 

Clause 31.  The contractor(s) shall make his/their own arrangements for water required 
for the work and nothing extra will be paid for the same. This will be subject to the 
following conditions:- 
 

i) That the water used by the contractor(s) shall be fit for construction purposes to the 
satisfaction of the Engineer-in-charge; 

 

ii) The Engineer in-Charge shall make alternative arrangements for supply of water at 
the risk and cost of contractor(s) if the arrangements made by the contractor(s) for 
procurement of water are, in the opinion of the Engineer-in-Charge, unsatisfactory. 

 
Clause 32.  The contractor undertakes to make arrangement for the supervision of the 
work by the firm supplying the construction materials. The Contractor shall collect the 
total quantity of materials as per approved programme required for the work as per 
approved programme, before the work is started and shall hypothecate it to the Engineer-
in-Charge. If any material remains unused on completion of the work on account of lesser 
use of materials in actual execution for reasons other than authorized changes of 
specifications and abandonment of portion of work, a corresponding deduction equivalent 
to the cost of unused materials as determined by the Engineer-in-Charge shall be made 
and the material returned to the contractor. Although the materials are hypothecated to 
Institute, the contractor undertakes the responsibility for their proper watch, safe custody 
and protection against all risks. The materials shall not be removed from site of work 
without the consent of the Engineer-in-Charge in writing. 
 

The contractor shall be responsible for rectifying defects noticed within Defect Liability 
Period from the date of completion of the work and the portion of the security deposit 
relating to work shall be refunded after the expiry of Defect Liability Period. 
 
Clause 33.  The contractor shall provide all necessary superintendence during execution 
of the work and as long thereafter as may be necessary for proper fulfilling of the 
obligations under the contract. 
 

The contractor shall immediately after receiving letter of acceptance of the tender and 
before commencement of the work, intimate in writing to the Engineer-in-Charge, the 
name(s), qualifications, experience, age, address(es) and other particulars along  with 
certificates, of the principal technical representative to be in charge of the work and other 
technical representative(s) who will be supervising the work. The Engineer-in-Charge shall 
within 3 days of receipt of such communication intimate in writing his/her approval or 
otherwise of such representative(s) to the contractor. Any such approval may at any time 
be withdrawn and in case of such withdrawal, the contractor shall appoint another such 
representative according to the provisions of this clause. Decision of the tender accepting 
authority shall be final and binding on the contractor in this respect. Such a principal 
technical representative shall be appointed by the contractor soon after receipt of the 
approval from the Engineer-in-Charge and shall be available at site before start of work. 
 

If the contractor (or any partner in case of firm/company) himself/herself has such 
qualifications, it will not be necessary for the said contractor to appoint such a principal 
technical representative but the contractor shall designate and appoint a responsible agent 
to represent him and to be present at the work whenever the contractor is not in a position 
to be so present. All the provisions applicable to the principal technical representative 
under the clause will also be applicable in such a case to the contractor or his responsible 
agent. The principal technical representative and/or the contractor shall on receiving 
reasonable notice from the Engineer-in-Charge or his designated representative(s) in 
charge of the work in writing or in person or otherwise, present himself/herself to the 
Engineer-in-Charge and/or at the site of work, as required, to take instructions. 
Instructions given to the principal technical representative or  the responsible  agent  shall  
be  deemed  to  have  the  same  force  as  if  these  have  been given to the contractor. The 
principal technical representative and/or the contractor or his/her responsible authorized 
agent shall be actually available at site especially during important stages of execution of 
work, during recording of measurement of works and whenever so required by the 
Engineer-in-Charge by a notice as aforesaid and shall also note down instructions 
conveyed by the Engineer-in-Charge or his/her designated representative in the site order 

Contractors 
Superintendence, 
Supervision, 
Technical Staff & 
Employees  
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book and shall affix his signature in token of noting down the instructions and in token of 
acceptance of measurements. 
 

If the Engineer-in-Charge, whose decision in this respect is final and binding on the 
contractor, is convinced that no such technical representative(s) is/are effectively 
appointed or is/are effectively attending or fulfilling the provision of this clause, a recovery 
(non-refundable) shall be effected from the contractor as specified in Schedule and the 
decision of the Engineer-in-Charge as recorded in the site order book and measurement 
recorded checked / test checked in Measurement Books shall be final and binding on the 
contractor. Further if the contractor fails to appoint a suitable technical representative 
and/or other technical representative(s) and if such appointed persons are not effectively 
present or are absent by more than two days without duly approved substitute or do not 
discharge their responsibilities satisfactorily, the Engineer-in-Charge shall have full powers 
to suspend the execution of the work until such date as suitable other technical 
representative(s) is/are appointed and the contractor shall be held responsible for the 
delay so caused to the work. The contractor shall submit a certificate of employment of the 
technical representative(s) along with every running account bill / final bill and shall 
produce evidence if at any time so required by the Engineer-in-Charge. 
 
 

The contractor shall provide and employ on the site only such technical assistants as are 
skilled and experienced in their respective fields and such foremen and supervisory staff as 
are competent to give proper supervision to the work. 
 

The contractor shall provide and employ skilled, semi-skilled and unskilled labour as is 
necessary for proper and timely execution of the work. 
 

The Engineer-in-Charge shall be at liberty to object to and require the contractor to remove 
from the works any person who, in his opinion, misconducts himself, or is  incompetent or 
negligent in the performance of his duties or whose employment is otherwise considered by 
the Engineer-in-Charge to be undesirable. Such person shall not be employed again at 
works site without the written permission of the Engineer-in-Charge  and  the  persons  so  
removed  shall  be  replaced  as  soon  as  possible  by competent substitutes.  
 
Clause 34.  "Levy / Taxes Payable by Contractor" 
 

(i) GST, 
Cess in respect of this contract shall be payable by the Contractor and Engineer-in-
Charge shall not entertain any claim whatsoever in this respect. 

(ii) The contractor shall deposit Government Royalty and obtain necessary permit for 
supply of the sand, stone chips, red bajri, sand stone, river bed materials etc. from 
local authorities, if those are directly procured from quarry sites. 

 

In case materials are procured from secondary sources, certificates of quarry owners 
to the effect of payment of royalties and Cess would have to be furnished. In absence 
of such certificates towards payment of Royalties and Cess such components shall 
be deducted from t

ernment Treasuries/PAO. 
 

If pursuant to or under any law, notification or order, any Royalty, Cess or the like 
becomes payable by the implementing Department and does not at any time become 
payable by the contractor to the State Government/Local appropriate authorities in respect 
of any material used by the contractor in the works then in such a case, it shall be lawful 
to the Department and it will have the right and be entitled to recover the amount paid in 
the circumstances as aforesaid from dues of the contractor. 
 
 

Clause 35. 
 
 

(i) All tendered rates shall be inclusive of statutory taxes and levies payable under 
respective statutes. However, if any further tax or cess is imposed by Statute, after the 
last stipulated date for the receipt of tender including extensions if any and the 
contractor thereupon necessarily and properly  pays  such  taxes/levies/cess,  the  
contractor  shall  be  reimbursed  the  amount  so  paid. Provided such payments, if 
any, is not, in the opinion of the Engineer-in-charge (whose decision shall be final and 
binding on the contractor) attributable to delay in execution of work within the control 
of the contractor. 
 

(ii) The contractor shall keep necessary books of accounts and other documents for the 
purpose of this condition as may be necessary and shall allow inspection of the same 
by a duly authorized representative of the Department and/or the Engineer-in-Charge 
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and further shall furnish such other information/document as the Engineer-in-
Charge may require from time to time. 

 

(iii) The contractor shall, within a period of 30 days of the imposition of any such further 
tax or levy or cess, give a written notice thereof to the Engineer-in-Charge that the 
same is given pursuant to this condition, together with all necessary information 
relating thereto. 

 
Clause 36.  Without prejudice to any of the rights or remedies under this contract, if the 
contractor dies, the Engineer-in-charge shall have the option of terminating the contract 
without compensation to the contractor, but would be liable to clear full dues and claims 
on work done to his/her legal successor/s. 
 
Clause 37.  The contractor shall not be permitted to tender for works in which his near 
relative is posted as in any capacity between the grades of the Executive Engineer and 
Junior Engineer (both inclusive). He shall also intimate the names of persons who are 
working with him/her in any capacity or are subsequently employed by him/her and who 
are near relatives to any Official in the Institute. Any breach of this condition by the 
contractor would render him/her liable to be removed from the approved list of contractors 
of the Department. If however the contractor is registered in any other Department, he/she 
shall be debarred from tendering in the Department for any breach of this condition. 
 

own parents and 
grandparents, own children and grandchildren, own brothers and sisters, own uncles, 
aunts and first cousins and their corresponding in-laws. 
 
Clause 38.  No engineer of Gazetted Rank or other Gazetted Officer employed in 
engineering or administrative duties in the Government shall work as a contractor or 
employee of a contractor for a period of one year after his/her retirement from Government 
service without the previous permission of Government  in  writing. This contract is liable 
to be cancelled if either the contractor or any of his employees is found at any time to be 
such a person who had not obtained the permission of Government as aforesaid, before 
submission of the tender or engagement in the contractor's service, as the case may be. 
 
Clause 39.  The work (whether fully constructed or not) and all materials, machines, tools 
and plants, scaffolding, temporary buildings and other things connected therewith shall be 
at the risk of the contractor until the work has been delivered to the Engineer-in-Charge 
and a certificate from him/her to that effect obtained. In the event of the work or any 
materials properly brought to the site for incorporation in the work being damaged or 
destroyed in consequence of hostilities or warlike operation, the contractor shall when 
ordered (in writing) by the Engineer-in-Charge to remove any debris from the site, collect 
and properly stack or remove in store all serviceable  materials salvaged from the damaged 
work and shall be paid at the contract rates in accordance with the provision of this 
agreement for the work of clearing the site of debris, stacking or removal of serviceable 
material and for reconstruction of all works ordered by the Engineer-in-Charge, such 
payments being in addition to compensation up to the value of the work originally executed 
before being damaged or destroyed and not paid for. In case of works damaged or 
destroyed but not already measured and paid for, the compensation shall be assessed by 
the Engineer-in-Charge concerned. The contractor shall be paid for the 
damages/destruction suffered and for the restoring the material at the rate based on 
analysis of rates tendered for in accordance with the provision of the contract. The 
certificate of the Engineer-in-Charge regarding the quality and quantity of materials and 
the purpose for which they were collected shall be final and binding on all parties to this 
contract. 
 

Provided always that no compensation shall be payable for any loss in consequence of 
hostilities or warlike operations (a) unless the contractor had taken all such precautions 
against air raid as are deemed necessary by the Air Force Officers or the Engineer-in-
Charge (b) for any material etc. not on the site of the work or for any tools, plant, 
machinery, scaffolding, temporary building and other things not intended for the work. 
 

In the event of the contractor having to carry out reconstruction as aforesaid, he/she shall 
be allowed such extension of time for its completion as is considered reasonable by the 
Engineer-in-charge. 
 

Clause 40.  The contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Apprentices Act, 1961 
and the Apprenticeship Rules, 1992 and orders issued thereunder from time to time. If 
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he/she fails to do so, his/her failure will be a breach of the contract and the Engineer-in-
Charge may, in his/her discretion, cancel the contract. The contractor shall also be liable 
for any pecuniary liability arising on account of any violation by him/her of the provisions 
of the said Act. 
 
Clause 41.  Procedure For Suspension and Debarment of Supplier, Contractors and 
Consultants 
 

The procedure as laid down below shall govern the suspension/debarment of 
Suppliers/Contractors/Consultants (Contractors for brevity) involved in Government 
procurement for offences or violations committed during competitive bidding and contract 
implementation, for the works under different Departments of Government of West Bengal. 
 

Grounds for Suspension and Debarment:- 
 

(1) Submission of eligibility requirements containing false information or falsified 
documents. 

(2) Submission of Bids that contain false information or falsified documents, or the 
concealment of such information in the Bids in order to influence the outcome of 
eligibility screening or any other stage of the bidding process. 

(3) the purpose of 
bidding process. 

(4) Any documented unsolicited attempt by a bidder (A Person/Contractor/Agency 
/Joint Venture/Consortium/Corporation participating in the procurement 
process and/or a person / Contractor / Agency / Joint Venture / Consortium / 
Corporation having an agreement/contract for any procurement with the 
department shall be referred as Bidder) unduly influencing the outcome of the 
bidding in his favour. 

(5) Refusal or failure to post a self declaration to the effect of any previous debarment 
imposed by any other department of State Government and/or Central Government. 

(6) All other acts that tend to defeat the purpose of the competitive bidding such as 
lodging false complain about any Bidder, lodging false complain about any Officer 
duly authorized by the Department, restraining any interested bidder to participate 
in the bidding process, etc. 

(7) Assignment and subcontracting of the contract or any part thereof without prior 
written approval of the procuring entity. 

(8) Whenever adverse reports related to adverse performance, misbehaviour, direct or 
indirect involvement in threatening, making false complaints etc. damaging the 
reputation of the department or any other type complaint considered fit by the 
competent authority of the department, are received from more than one Officer or 
on more than one occasion from individual Officer. 

(9) Refusal or failure to post the required performance security / earnest money within 
the prescribed time without justifiable cause. 

(10) Failure in deployment of Technical Personnel, Engineers and/or Work Supervisor 
having requisite license / supervisor certificate of competency as specified in the 
contract. 

(11) 
contract with the Government without justifiable cause. 

(12) Failure of the Contractor, due solely to his fault or negligence, to mobilize and start 

, etc. 
(13) Failure by the Contractor to fully and faithfully comply with its contractual 

obligations without valid cause, or failure by the Contractor to comply with any 
written lawful instruction of the Procuring Entity/Authority (the Officer authorized 
by the Administrative Department, Government of West Bengal for procurement) or 
its representative(s) pursuant to the implementation of the Contract. 

(14) For the procurement of Consultancy Service/Contracts, poor performance by the 
Consultant of his services arising from his fault or negligence. Any of the following 
acts by the Consultant shall be construed as poor performance. 
(i) Non deployment of competent technical personnel, competent Engineers and/or 

work supervisors; 
(ii) Non-deployment of committed equipment, facilities, support staff and 

manpower; 
(iii) Defective design resulting in substantial corrective works in design and/or 

construction; 
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(iv)  
(v) Specifying materials which are inappropriate and substandard or way above 

acceptable standards leading to high procurement cost; 
(vi) Allowing defective workmanship or works by the Contractor being supervised by 

the Consultant. 
 

(15) For the procurement of goods, unsatisfactory progress in the delivery of the goods by 
the manufacturer, supplier, or distributor arising from his fault or negligence and/or 
unsatisfactory or inferior quality of goods, vis-à-vis as laid down in the contract.  

(16) Willful or deliberate abandonment or non-performance of the project or Contract by 
the Contractor resulting in substantial breach thereof without lawful and/or just 
cause. 

 

CATEGORY OF OFFENCE :- 
(A) First degree of offence:  1 to 16 of the above Clause-41 to be considered as First 

degree of offence. 
(B) Second degree of offence: Any one of the offe

committed by a particular Bidder/Contractor/Supplier on more than one occasion, 
be considered as Second  degree of offence. 

 
In addition to the penalty of suspension/debarment, the bid security / earnest money 
posted by the concerned Bidder or prospective Bidder shall also be forfeited.  
 
PENALTY FOR OFFENCE :-  
 

(I) For committing First degree of offence:  Disqualifying a Bidder from participating in 
any procurement process under the Administrative Department of Government of 
West Bengal up to 2 (two) years. 

(II) For committing Second degree of offence:  Disqualifying a Bidder from participating in 
any procurement process under the Administrative Department of Government of 
West Bengal up to 3 (three) years. 

 
PROCEDURE OF SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT DURING THE PROCUREMENT 
PROCESS 
 

(1) Initiation of Action, Notification and Hearings: 
Any Bidder or procurement authority on his own or based on any other information 
made available to him may invite the process of suspension/debarment proceedings 
by filing a written application with the Bid Evaluation Committee and such filing 
of written application has to be done within forty eight hours from the date and time 
of publication of the result of technical evaluation of any bid. 
(a) Upon verification of the existence of grounds for suspension/debarment, the 

Chairperson of Bid Evaluation Committee shall immediately notify the bidder 
concerned either electronically through his registered e-mail or in writing to his 
postal address, advising him that: 
i) A complaint has been filed against him and prima facie material has been 

found, which may lead to suspension/debarment. 
ii) He has been recommended to be placed under suspension/debarment by 

the suspension committee (as constituted by the respective Administrative 
Department) stating the ground for such. 

iii) The said bidder, within three days from the date of issue of such notification 
by the Bid Evaluation Committee, may approach the Chairperson of 
Suspension Committee by submitting all required documents in his favour 
for hearing. Any application made thereafter would not be entertained. 

Such notice should contain the e-mail id and the postal address of the 
Chairperson of the Suspension Committee. 

(b) After receiving the recommendation for suspension from Bid Evaluation 
Committee, Suspension Committee shall issue a notice to the alleged bidder 
electronically through his registered e-mail id, to submit all relevant documents 
in support of his defense within three working days after issuance of the notice 
of the Suspension Committee. The Suspension Committee will conduct the 
hearing within seven working days from the date of receipt of the documents 
from the alleged bidder. If no appeal has been received from the alleged bidder 
or if after hearing sufficient ground for suspension is found, the Suspension 
Committee, will suspend the alleged bidder from participating in the 
procurement process under the Administrative Department for a period of six 
months from the date of issuance of suspension order. The Chairperson of the 
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Suspension Committee shall issue the suspension order within seven days 
from the last date of hearing and shall notify the bidder concerned either 
electronically through his registered e-mail id or in writing to his postal 
address. The Chairperson of Suspension Committee shall also inform the 
decision to all concerned. 
If sufficient reason for suspension is not found, the Suspension Committee       
would reject the recommendation of Bid Evaluation Committee and would allow 
the bidder to take part in the tendering process. 
If the bidder is suspended, the Suspension Committee would recommend 
debarment of the bidder and forward the case with all documents to the 
Debarment Committee for further action. 

(c) The Debarment Committee upon receipt of the recommendation of the 
Suspension Committee shall scrutinize the documents. The Debarment 
Committee will hold a hearing of the alleged bidder and issue necessary order 
within ten working days from the last date of hearing. The Debarment 
Committee, if satisfied after hearing, shall forward the case to the Department 
for orders of Debarment. The Department in due course will issue Debarment 
Order disqualifying/prohibiting the erring bidder from participating in the 
bidding/procurement of all projects under the Administrative Department for a 
specified period. The alleged bidder shall be intimated accordingly either 
electronically through his registered e-mail id or in writing to his postal 
address. Otherwise the Debarment Committee may reject the recommendation 
of the Suspension Committee. The Chairperson of Debarment Committee shall 
also inform the decision to all concerned. 

 
PROCEDURE FOR DEBARMENT DURING THE CONTRACT IMPLEMENTATION STAGE:- 
 

(A) Upon termination of contract due to default of the Bidder, the Engineer-in-Charge shall 
recommend for debarment to the Bid Evaluation Committee. The Bid Evaluation 
Committee shall submit his recommendation of debarment of the alleged Bidder along 
with a detailed report stating clearly the reasons for debarment to the Debarment 
Committee within 30 (thirty) days from the date of termination of contract. The alleged 
Bidder shall be intimated accordingly either electronically to his registered e-mail id or 
in writing to his postal address. The Chairperson of Bid Evaluation Committee shall 
also inform the decision to all concerned. 

(B) The Debarment Committee upon receipt of the recommendation of Bid Evaluation 
Committee shall scrutinize the documents. The Debarment Committee will hold a 
hearing about the matter from the Bidder and issue necessary order within 10 (ten) 
working days from the last date of hearing. The Debarment Committee, if satisfied after 
hearing, shall forward the case to the Department for the order of debarment. The 
Department in due course will issue debarment order disqualifying/prohibiting the 
erring Bidder from participating in the bidding/procurement of all projects under the 
Administrative Department, Government of West Bengal for a specified period. The 
alleged Bidder shall be intimated accordingly either electronically to his registered e-
mail id or in writing to his postal address. Otherwise the Debarment Committee may 
reject the recommendation of the Bid Evaluation Committee. The Chairperson of 
Debarment Committee shall also inform the decision to all concerned.  

 
STATUS OF SUSPENDED / DEBARRED BIDDER :- 
 

(a) Bidder placed under Suspension/Debarment by the competent authority will not be 
allowed to participate in any procurement process under the Administrative 
Department within the period of suspension/debarment. The earnest money of the 
suspended Bidder shall stand forfeited to the Government.  

(b) If the Suspension/Debarment Order 

etc. for any Bid, the Suspended/Debarred Bidder shall 
not be qualified for Award for the said Bid and such Procurement Process will be 
dealt with as per existing norms by simply excluding the erring Bidder. 

(c) If the Suspension/Debarment Order is issued after award of a Government 
Project/Contract to the Debarred Bidder, the awarded Project/Contract shall not be 
prejudiced by the said Order provided that the said offence(s) committed by the 
Debarred Bidder is not connected with the awarded project/contract. 
 

Clause 42.  Executive Engineer of the concerned Division will be the Engineer-in-Charge 
in respect of the Tender contract and all correspondences concerning rates, claims, change 
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in specifications and/or design and similar important matters will be valid only if 
accepted/recommended by the Engineer-in-Charge. If any correspondence of above tender 
is made with Officers other than the Engineer-in-charge for speedy execution of works, the 
same will not be valid unless copies are sent to the Engineer-in-Charge and also approved 
by him. Instructions given by the Assistant Engineer and the Junior Engineer on behalf of 
the Engineer-in-Charge (who have been authorized to carry out the work on behalf of the 
Engineer-in-Charge) regarding specification, supervision, approval of materials and 
workmanship shall also be valid. In case of dispute relating to specification and work, the 
decision of Engineer-in-Charge shall be final and binding. The Engineer-in-Charge will 
however invariably take decisions relating to tender contract or as mentioned in the 
relevant rules and clauses of the contract document with the approval of the Tender 
Accepting Authority.  
 
Clause 43.  Acceptance of the Tender will rest with the Tender Accepting Authority without 
assigning reason thereof to the bidder. The accepting authority reserves the right to reject 
any or all of the tenders without assigning any reason thereof to the bidder/contractor. 
 
Clause 44.  In the event of acceptance of Lowest Rate, no multiple Lowest Rates will be 
considered for acceptance by the Department. In such cases, the Tender will be cancelled. 
 
Clause 45.  In the event of conflicting different clauses, the clauses in the e-NIT will 
prevail. 
 
Clause 46.  Engineer-in-Charge shall not entertain any claim whatsoever from the 
Contractor for payment of compensation on account of idle labour on such grounds 
including non-possession of encumbrance free land. 
 
Clause 47.  Engineer-in-Charge shall not be held liable for any compensation due to 
machines becoming idle or any circumstances including untimely rains, other natural 
calamities, like strikes etc. 
 
Clause 48.  Imposition of any Duty/Tax/Octroi/Royalty etc. whatsoever of its nature (after 
work order / commencement and before final completion of the work) is to be borne by the 
contractor/bidder. Original challan of those materials, which are procured by the bidder, 
may be asked to be submitted for verification. 
 
Clause 49.  Cess @ 1% or as amended time to time of the cost of construction works shall 
be deducted from the Gross value of all Works Bill in terms of Finance Department order. 
Also it is instructed to register his/her establishment under the Act, with the competent 
registering Authority, i.e. Assistant Labour Commissioner / Deputy Labour Commissioner 
of the region.  
 
Clause 50.  No Mobilization/Secured Advance will be allowed unless specified otherwise in 
the contract. 
 
Clause 51.  Valid PAN issued by the Income Tax Department, Government of India, valid 
15 digit Goods and Services Tax Payer Identification Number (GSTIN) under GST Act 2017, 
Cess, Royalty of Sand, Stone Chips, Stone Metal Gravel, Boulders, Forest product etc., Toll 
Tax, Income Tax, Ferry Charges and other Local Taxes, if any, are to be paid by the 
Contractor/Bidder. No extra payment will be made as a reimbursement or as 
compensation for these. The rates of supply and finished work items are inclusive of these 
taxes and charges. 
 
Clause 52.  All working Tools & Plants, Scaffolding, Construction of Vats & Platforms and 
arrangement of Labour Camps will have to be arranged by the Contractor at his/her own 
cost. 
 
Clause 53.  The Contractor shall supply Mazdoors, Bamboos, Ropes, Pegs, Flags etc. for 
laying out the work and for taking and checking measurements for which no extra 
payment will be made. 
 
Clause 54.  The Contractor/Bidder should see the site of works and Tender Documents, 
Drawings etc. before submitting e-Tender and satisfy himself/herself regarding the 
condition and nature of works and ascertain difficulties that might be encountered in 
executing the work, carrying materials to the site of work, availability of drinking water and 
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other human requirements & security etc. Work on river banks may be interrupted due to 
a number of unforeseen reasons e.g. sudden rises in water levels, inundation during flood, 
inaccessibility of working site for carriage of materials. Engineer-in Charge may order the 
contractor to suspend work that may be subjected to damage by climate conditions. No 
claim will be entertained on this account. There may be variation in alignment, height of 
embankment or depth of cutting, location of revetment, structures etc. due to change of 
topography, river condition and local requirements etc. between the preparation and 
execution of the scheme for which the tendered rate and contract will not stand invalid. 
The Contractor will not be entitled to any claim or extra rate on any of these accounts. 
 
Clause 55.  A machine page numbered Site Order Book (with triplicate copy) will have to 
be maintained at site by the Contractor and the same has got to be issued from the 
Engineer-in-Charge before commencement of work. Instructions given by inspecting 
officers not below the rank of Assistant Engineer will be recorded in this book and the 
contractor must note down the action to be taken by him in this connection as quickly as 
possible. 
 
Clause 56.  The work will have to be completed within the time mentioned in the e-NIT. A 
suitable Work Programme based on time allowed for completion of work as per e-NIT is to 
be submitted by the contractor within 7 (seven) days from the date of receipt of work order 
which should satisfy the time limit of completion. The contractor should inform in writing,  
within 7 (seven) days from the date of receipt of work order, the names of his authorized 
representatives who are to remain present at site daily during work execution who will 
receive instructions of the work, sign measurement book, bills and other Government 
papers etc. 
 
Clause 57.  No compensation for idle labour, establishment charge or on other reasons 
such as variation of price indices etc. will be entertained. 
 
Clause 58.  All possible precautions should be taken for the safety of the people and work 
force deployed at worksite as per safety rule in force. Contractor will remain responsible for 
his labour in r
deal with such cases as promptly as possible. Proper road signs as per PWD practice or 
any other sign board for safety purpose as per requirement by the concerned 
Administrative Department will have to be erected by the Contractor at his own cost while 
operating in public thoroughfares. 
 
Clause 59.  The Contractor will have to maintain qualified technical employees and/or 
Apprentices at site as per prevailing Apprentice Act or as stipulated in the contract. 
 
Clause 60.  The Contractor will have to accept the Work Programme as per modifications 
and priority of work fixed by the Engineer-in-Charge so that most vulnerable reach and/or 
vulnerable items are completed before impending monsoon or rise in river flood water level 
or for other suitable reasons. 
 
Clause 61.  Quantities of different items of work mentioned in the tender schedule or in 
work order are only tentative. In actual work, these may vary considerably. Payment will be 
made on the basis of works actually done in different items and no claim will be 
entertained for reduction of quantities in some items or for omission of some items. For 
execution of quantitative excess in any item or supplementary new items of work as 
decided by the Department, approval of the Superintending Engineer / Chief Engineer / 
Government would be required, depending on whosoever be the Tender Accepting 
Authority, before making such payment. 
 
Clause 62.  In order to cope up with the present system of e-billing, supply of 
departmental materials is generally not allowed. However, if in special circumstances, 
Departmental materials may be issued to the Contractor/Bidder to the extent of 
requirements as assessed, those may be recovered from the Running Account Bill and/or 
Final Bill, as applicable. 
 
Clause 63.  Any material brought to site by the contractor is subject to approval of the 
Engineer-in-Charge. The rejected materials must be removed by the contractor from the 
site at his own cost within 24 hours of issue of the order to that effect. The rates in the 
schedule are inclusive of cost and carriage of all materials to worksite. The materials will 
have to be supplied in phase with due intimation to the Assistant Engineer concerned in 
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conformity with the progress of the work. For special type of materials, i.e. Geo Synthetic 
Bags, HDPE Bags, Geo Textile Filter, Geo Jute Filter etc., if any, relevant Data Sheet 
containing the name of the Manufacturers, Test Report etc. will also be submitted on each 
occasion. Engineer-in-Charge may conduct independent test on the samples drawn 
randomly before according approval for using the materials at site. In this regard decision 
of Engineer-in-Charge shall be final and binding. 
 

Clause 64.  For all items of contract jobs requiring skilled labour, the contractor shall have 
to employ 70% (Seventy Percent) of skilled labour locally. In case the Contractor fails to 
recruit skilled local labour, the Contractor shall employ skilled labour locally secured by 
Government in the manner indicated above. For bridge works, highly technical works of 
labour, the contractor may, with the prior permission in writing of the Engineer-in-charge 
to whom full facts must be placed for such permission, import and employ skilled labour 
up to 30% 
labour  shall mean labour imported primarily from other States and secondarily, from the 

secure 
unskilled local labour or to engage imported labour, the contractor shall employ labour 
locally recruited by Government or labour imported by Government at the rate to be 
decided by the Superintending Engineer of the works concerned, whose decision as to the 
circumstances in which employment of such labour is of mutual advantage to Government 
and the contractor, will be final and binding on the parties. 

 
Clause 65.  All queries and disputes arising out of the works tender contract is to be 
brought to 
writing for decision within 15 days. 
 
Clause 66.  The contractor shall have to make his own arrangements for water, both for 
the work and use by his workers, etc., for road rollers and for all tools and plant, etc., 
required on the work. 
 
Clause 67.  Contractor will be responsible for the payments of all water charges payable to 
the Corporation Municipality / Panchayat or any other water works authority including a 
Government Department concerned. 
 
Clause 68.  If the contractors shall desire an extension of the time for completion of the 
work under clause 5 of the contract, no application for such extension will be entertained if 
it is not received in sufficient time to allow the Executive Engineer to consider it and the 
Contractor will be responsible for the consequences arising out of his negligence in this 
respect. 
 
Clause 69.  The Contractor will have to leave ducts in walls and floors to run conduit or 
cables, where necessary, and he will not be entitled to any extra payment on this account. 
 
Clause 70.  Contractors in the course of their work should understand that all materials 
obtained in the work of Dismantling, Excavation, etc., will be considered Government   
property and will be disposed of to the best advantage of Government. 
 
Clause 71.  In case of very special case of circumstances, if any Departmental materials 
are issued, there may be delay in obtaining the materials by the Department and the 
Contractor is, therefore, required to keep himself/herself in touch with the day to day 
position regarding the supply of materials from the Engineer-in-charge and to so adjust the 
progress of the work that his labour may not remain idle nor may there be any other claim 
due to or arising from delay in obtaining the materials. It should be clearly understood that 
no claim whatsoever shall be entertained by the Department on account of delay in 
supplying materials. 
 
Clause 72.  No compensation for any damage done by rain or traffic during the execution 
of the work will be made. 
 
Clause 73.  Whenever a work is carried out in municipal area, electric lights or electric 
danger signals whenever available shall be provided by the contractors on the barriers as 
well as paraffin lights. Facilities for the electric connection will be made by this Department 
but the Contractor will bear all the expenses. 
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Clause 74.   The Contractor should quote through rate inclusive of cost of materials and 
carriage to place of working. 
 
Clause 75.  The Contractors should give complete specifications showing the method of 
execution and the quantity and quality of materials they intend to use per hundred square 
metre area. 
 
Clause 76.  In cases where water is used by the Contractor he will be required to deposit 
in advance with the Executive Engineer the charges for water which are to be calculated in 
accordance with the schedule of miscellaneous rates in the Canal Act. 
 
Clause 77.  It must be clearly understood by the Contractor that no claim on account of 
enhanced rates on those already accepted, due to fluctuations arising out of any situation 
will be entertained during the currency of this contract for the work as per schedule 
attached to the agreement and the additional work, if any, under Clause 12 of the contract.  
 
Clause 78.  In the event of emergency the Contractor will be required to pay his labour 
everyday and if this is not done, Government shall make the requisite payments as would 
have been paid by the contractor and recover the cost from the contractors. 
 

INCONVENIENCE OF THE PUBLIC 
 
Clause 79.  The Contractor(s) shall not deposit material on any site which will seriously 
inconvenience the public. The Engineer-in-charge may require the Contractor(s) to remove 
any materials, which are considered by him to be a danger or inconvenience to the public 

 
 
Clause 80.  The Contractor undertakes to have the site clean, free from rubbish to the 
satisfaction of the Engineer-in-charge. All surplus materials, rubbish etc. will be removed  
to the places fixed by the Engineer-in-charge and nothing extra will be paid. 
 
Clause 81.  The  Contractor  shall  not  allow  any  rubbish  or  debris  to  remain  on  the 
premises  during  or  after  repairs,  but  shall  remove  the  same  and  keep  the place 
neat and tidy during the progress of the work. The Engineer-in-charge may get the site 
premises cleared of debris etc. And recover the cost from the bill of the contractor, if the 
latter shows slackness in observing this clause. 
 
Clause-82.  Construction materials brought at site shall not be stacked at random. The 
contractor shall stack all these materials as directed by the Engineer-in-charge. 
 
 

INTERPRETATION OF CLAUSES 
 
 

 

Governor means the Governor of the State of West Bengal and his/her successors. 
 

The Government means Government in the concerned Works Department. 
 

The Department means the Secretary of the concerned Department or his/her authorized 
representative.  
 

The Divisional Officer means the Executive Engineer of the concerned Works Department  
for the time being of the Division concerned, also identified as the Engineer-in-Charge. 
 

The Sub-divisional Officer means the Assistant Engineer of the concerned Works 
Department for the time being of the Sub-division concerned. Junior Engineer equivalent 
to Section Officer of the Section concerned. 
 

Superintending Engineer in the concerned works Department is the final Authority 
regarding Schedule of Rates and also the acceptance of Non-scheduled item rates arrived 
on the basis of market rate analysis for supplementary items, and the authority for 
approval of Reduced Rates and Part Rates. He is also the Tender Accepting Authority for 
works of value above Rs. 45.00 lakh and up to Rs. 2.00 crore under existing delegated 
power. 
 

Chief Engineer in the concerned Works Department is the technical head of the 
Directorate and is also the Tender Accepting Authority for all works of value above Rs. 
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2.00 crore. Excess work over individual items comprising the original tender may be 
exceeded beyond 10% with the approval of concerned tender accepting authority and 
verified by the Superintending Engineer / Chief Engineer subject to the total value of 
work upon completion is within the technically sanctioned cost and that there is no 
major deviation from original scope of work in the tender. Any supplementary 
tender/item/work in connection with the main tender is to be taken up with the 
approval of the Tender Accepting Authority not below the rank of Executive 
Engineer. Such supplementary tenders above 10% of BOQ are to be executed only with 
the approval of appropriate Government irrespective of the value of tender. 
 

Words importing the singular number only include the plural number and vice versa. 
 

Irrespective of the accepting authority, Divisional officer shall be the authority 
signing agreement for all tenders of value more than Rs. 3.00 lakh up to any 
amount on behalf of the State. 
 
Schedule showing (approximately) materials to be supplied by the Engineer-in-Charge 
under clause 10: 
 

 

Particulars Rates at which the materials will be 
charged to the contractor 

Place of delivery 

Unit Rs. P. 
    

 

Note 1- The person or firm submitting the tender should see that the rates in the above 
schedule are  filled up  by  the  Engineer-in-charge  on the issue  of  the  form  prior  to  the 
submission of the tender. 
  
 
 
 
 

(Name in full) 
*Signature of Contractor/Agency 

with official seal containing 
Principal office address 

(Name in full) 
*Signature of Executive Engineer/ 

Assistant Engineer 
on behalf of the Governor of the 

State of West Bengal with official seal 
containing designation & address 

 
* To be authenticated on each and every page of the contract document by all parties. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
     


